
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, October 5th, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Mr. Ed Vergano, Director Department of Technical Services 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this evening, ladies and gentlemen, there will be a couple of changes to the agenda.  We are going to adjourn PB 10-06 which is the Best Rent Properties for the carwash and convenience store on Cortlandt Boulevard.  If you’re here and you wanted to address this particular application you can feel free to wait until we get to it and put your comments in for the record but we will be adjourning that.  There will be another one that we adjourning and that’s for PB 24-08 which is the JJB Properties Inc, for the property of Homard Products and that’s for a tree removal Permit and a site development plan approval for 764 vehicles on Arlo Lane.  We’re going to take that off the agenda for tonight.  Under ‘old business’ PB 8-10 the applicant has requested that we remove this until further notice.  I’m not certain when that is going to come before us again, but for the two hearings 24-08 and 10-06, if you’re here and need to address those issues for those applications feel free to stick around until we get to them and then put your comments on the record.  Can we have a motion to accept those changes? 
So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated those changes are now accepted.



*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF AUGUST 3, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated can I have somebody to adopt the minutes from August 3rd. 
So moved, seconded. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I have some corrections I’m submitting.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS
PB 1-10     a. Application of Curry Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for the modification and expansion of the existing Curry Hyundai/Subaru to Curry Toyota and for the demolition of the existing HSBC Bank Building and the former Midas Muffler Shop and the construction of an approximately 26,500 sq. ft. Curry Subaru/Hyundai dealership on a 5.305 acre parcel of property located at 3025 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Curry Properties” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated April 7, 2010.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I’d like to present Resolution #47-10 approving this application with the attached 20 conditions. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 25-93    b.
Letter dated July 20, 2010 from William Balter requesting Planning Board approval for modifications to the conditionally approved Site Development Plan for the 92 unit Roundtop at Montrose development including the construction of 4 buildings rather than 5 buildings, changes to the approved elevations of the proposed buildings, changes to the conditionally approved recreational amenities and for changes to parking areas and retaining walls as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Roundtop at Montrose” prepared by Jeffrey Contelmo, P.E. dated July 23, 2010 and a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Roundtop” prepared by L & M Design, LLC dated October 15, 2008”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated can I have somebody make a motion to…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution 48-10.

Seconded

Ms. Susan Todd stated on the question, there is a drainage basin that is in the wetland buffer.  I don’t have the map in front of me but I think it’s B, drainage basin B – no drainage basin 2.  I realize these plans were approved previously and I also realize that this is a very steep area so it might be impossible to bring that basin closer to drainage basin #1 but if there were any way that that could be done in the field, in the site when it’s – I think that would be preferable because it would be more in line with our wetland codes which is to keep as much as possible outside of the wetland buffer and I can’t tell from that right now that it absolutely has to be in that position.  Do you know?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we could add a condition that the applicants to explore that possibly with staff?

Ms. Susan Todd responded yes, that would be good.  How would that condition read?  That would be condition #34…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded applicant to explore the possibility of removing the basin #2 from the buffer with staff. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated that’s fine with me.  That’s good.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other concerns here?

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED) 

PB 23-08    a.
Public Hearing: Application of John P. Alfonzetti, P.E., for the property of Angelo Cipriano, for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 4 lot major subdivision of 9.25 acres for property located off of Mt. Airy Road E., southeast of Joseph Wallace Drive, as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary 4 Lot Subdivision Mountain View Estates” prepared by John Alfonzetti, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2010.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated [inaudible, microphone not on 7:49 to 8:25]
Mr. Ed Vergano stated John, just to clarify the proposal would be 20 feet wide?  

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded the client would like to keep the road as a public road.  It helps with easements, and homeowner’s associations, things like that.  It’ll be a little wider for snow removal, things of that nature, two cars passing.  He’d be willing to plant the egg trees on the property somewhere to make up the difference between what we loose but I’m basically leaving it up to the Board. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated just to clarify this drawing that you supplied with your letter shows a 20 foot wide private drive?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded correct, and it shows the old road where it was at 30 feet wide.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and the dash line is the public road?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded correct. 
Ms. Susan Todd stated I think I was one of the people who thought of this idea, in part because the non-area has a lot of private roads like this and I think people enjoy living on the private roads because they feel a sense of real community.  I also thought that it would be less of an impact in the – you’re at the end of a cul-de-sac already and our Code says the cul-de-sacs aren’t supposed to be 500 feet long so I’m thinking that that’s a way of mitigating that problem too.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated like I said, I’m leaving it up entirely to the Board, whatever their preference is, obviously the Town Engineer.  We can do either one.  It will work either way.  My client would like to keep it a public road just for the ease of future easements and what have you, homeowner’s associations. 

Mr. John Bernard asked John, I don’t know if you were here during our work session, were you?  
Mr. John Alfonzetti responded I was not.

Mr. John Bernard continued we had some discussion about these very issues and I think one of the things that we talked about was that this is kind of a marketing decision that is really best left up to you and the applicant as to how you want this small development to end up looking and how you’re going to market it, who you’re going to sell it to.  It’s not really a decision that we can force upon you.  
Mr. John Alfonzetti stated if I were to speak for the client at this point I think we’d like to keep it a public road.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the other thing that, at least I was concerned about especially after I had heard that this road might be narrower than 20 feet, you’re telling us now that it is 20 feet, it’s not marked on the drawing and I guess we sort of calculated that it might be about 17 feet or something like that.  But, what I was concerned about is the fact that whatever happened here might up pushing the road up against the trees if you say you had to widen it or something.  It looks like, right now, there’s a little bit of room for most of the trees here but I also recall that we pushed pretty strongly in more than one other application for a change in the road to protect trees and in at least one or two cases it really didn’t work.  The applicant tried very hard to make it work but it just didn’t work and the trees actually died later.  I think that sort of goes to what my colleague John Bernard is saying.  In the end, it might look beautiful and it might be something that neighbors could appreciate but it also could be that you make this road narrower than a public road and still the trees, because of just the mere fact that you’re putting in a road along these trees, might kill some or all of them.  We don’t really know.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated that’s one of the conversations I had with the client regarding possibly planting some additional trees once the road is established, plant some trees along the curb line to make up some of the trees that have been eliminated or are potentially eliminated. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we’re looking at basically a 4 foot difference between the private and the public road.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded 10 foot difference.  The public road would be 30 feet.  The requirement for a private would be 20.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the Code is 30.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked which would he be required to as a standard, 30 feet?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded in the Code it says 30, the Planning Board routinely weighs up to 24.  We have approved public roads 24 foot wide. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so the minimum size would be a 24 foot wide public road.  Is there any room to the south of the property on that road to move that to avoid hurting those trees and taking those trees down if you want a public road?  Is there any room to the south I guess is the area that you can widen that road and still get the width you need?

Mr. Robert Foley stated the left side on your drawing. 

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded I’m looking at it and I suppose we could move it and I guess it would depend on whether we’d have to move the whole road base, the 50 foot road bed, move the whole thing south, that way, reconfigure the curb of the road. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we can agree to a 24 foot width if we wanted to, as a Board, to this road.  That gives you a little bit more room to work with.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated would there be a requirement to have the road actually in the center of the road bed, the 50 foot road bed?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes. 

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated it would be than we would have to move the property lines that are shown here and move it south.  We can look at doing it.  It’s always a possibility. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked are you up against your property line there?  Is that what the issue is?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded we are centered on the property line. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated oh, you’re centered on it, okay. 

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated we’re centered on the road bed. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the road bed property line.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it would only be about 4 feet you would be moving it if you had to?
Mr. John Alfonzetti responded if we go with a 24 foot wide road, yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so that won’t interfere with that existing house there?  It wouldn’t be that much closer to it.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded that’s correct.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think that’s something you can take a look at.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated the existing house we could probably keep the cul-de-sac, the actual turnaround in the same place, we would just reconfigure the way the road comes in.  The road base on the north western end of the property is on a narrow strip of land from Joseph Wallace onto the more larger parcel.  We’d have to keep it there and make the turn a little bit sharper at the end.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s that first house as you come off of Joseph Wallace circle?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded correct, we’re trying to keep it centered on that.  That’s a 50 foot strip of land there between those two houses for the properties.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so you’re saying you’d have to acquire more land in order to keep it on a center line if you were to move it 4 feet over to the left?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded yes, on the north western section yes, to keep it centered. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a decision that ultimately you’re going to have to make.  I don’t know what we can do or what we can advise that would help.  I really don’t know. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I feel that if you go to a 24 foot road that would be a good compromise if it is to remain a public road. 

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated that’s fine, we can figure it as a 24 foot road and again, we can offer some plantings and things along the shoulder. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked those 8 trees would basically still be preserved. 

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded I’m not sure that all 8 will be preserved.  We are increasing it by 4 feet, so I can’t necessarily say that.  I’d have to work it out.

Ms. Susan Todd stated it would be good if you could figure out what trees you thought…

Mr. John Alfonzetti asked species wise?

Ms. Susan Todd responded well, species I think you should try to plant native species that you’re removing.  I think they would probably do best there because it’s a canopy area.  We could put that in a Resolution, in a condition.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated write something along those lines is that we’ve been struggling with this for a while.  We still don’t have the biodiversity report back from Steve Coleman yet.  Hopefully, he may have done a little bit with the trees and he could give us some advice about what types of trees to replant.  We have him working on the project but he hasn’t given us his report yet. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody here who would like to speak on this particular application?

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we adjourn this until the next meeting while we await our town consultant’s biodiversity report and a redo of the plan in reference to the road situation as we just discussed.

Seconded

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated on the question did we agree that you’re going to take a look at what you can do to reduce the number of trees that would be lost if you’re going to go with a public road?

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded we’re going to lay out a 24 foot wide road and we’ll reduce whatever we can.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will see you next month and hopefully you’ll have some additional information for us and hopefully too, the biodiversity study will be…

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded yes, that’s been a couple of months now we’re waiting for it, since July or something to that effect. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we would like to see it just as much as you would.

PB 9-09      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval, a Renewal of a Junkyard Special Permit and  Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated April 22, 2010 (see prior PB 35-06).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing Brookfield.  In connection with this public hearing, at the last session we received a number of questions from the Board on a variety of issues.  There have been some written submissions that have been made by our team as well as by town’s consultants.  We’re going to try to hit each one of them in different pieces.  I’ll start first with the landscaping.  You did receive some revised landscape drawings from our team as well as a letter from Steve Coleman indicating that he was accepting of the modifications that were made with the exception of ensuring that there was an adequate monitoring and maintenance program and agreement and I’m assuming that we would do, in conjunction with Mr. Klarl and town staff, the typical enforcement agreements that the town mandates that all applicants comply with and were pleased to see that it appears that that issue was resolved with Mr. Coleman.  Additionally, we submitted a rather substantial submission on the storm water pollution prevention plan from our engineers.  It was reviewed by Susan Fasnacht of Charles Sells.  I know you all received a detailed and lengthy letter from Ms. Fasnacht My understanding is that, though she does raise a number of technical concerns, those concerns are indeed technical and resolvable and there are no major impediments.  I would defer to Mr. Vergano, my understanding from our project engineer is that these are issues that can and will be rectified.  She raises some good points and we’re pleased that we think we can surmount that and a lot of that you’ll recall is because, unlike the way this facility and this property have been utilized literally for decades, our client is desirous in putting a pad that would be far more useful for state-of-the-art maintenance of the facility and keeping materials safe from migrating into the ground.  The last thing, and an issue that certainly came up at length last time, was some traffic concerns.  What we did was we turned to Bill Fitzpatrick, our traffic engineer, and had him do a written submission and John Canning from Adler Consulting, the Town’s traffic consultant put in a written response dated October 1st.  I know there were some concerns and questions that were raised during your work session.  We want to work through those with you.  I think you have some fair questions and some fair concerns but I think as you’ll hear, hopefully from both of the traffic consultants tonight, based upon existing conditions at the site right now, because this facility’s operating, based upon historical data because this operation has operated in one form or another for decades, and projections, we believe that the facility will operate safely without any traffic impedances, without any difficulty in terms of flow northbound and southbound.  However, you’ve raised concerns about tractor trailers, about Q-ing, about turning.  We’ve studied it and we’ve had our experts submit data and he’s going to speak to that.  The good news is that you too have retained an expert who has reviewed our data and studied it and has the experience with it.  I think the solution that has been presented, namely that we not bank and decide things based upon models and projections but that we commit to coming back a year from now once the facility is up and running in accordance with its intent, we can at that point acquire empirical data, take count, see what’s going on and determine if there are indeed problems with gaps in turning, difficulty with queuing.  We don’t believe there will be but if there are then we’ve all agreed that that’s going to be studied and it’s going to have to be addressed and modifications would have to be made.  That brings us to the question of: what are the modifications?  I think you need to hear from the experts as to why there is some discussion about whether a turning lane is or is not feasible, why it might not be entirely feasible, yet it could be achievable with some modification and I’d like Mr. Fitzpatrick to be able to address you briefly on his submission and I’m hoping that you’ll take testimony from Mr. Canning in accordance with his October 1st letter because we would very much like to put this issue, for your purposes, behind you in the record.  I think you’ve got the data now in your record and you’ve got my client committing to come back and do the studies necessary and to come back before this Board, if required, a year from now or a year from build out and return and see whether you’ve got a problem.  In conjunction with this Board, in conjunction with New York State DOT and if there’s an issue it’s going to have to be addressed and we’re rather optimistic that it’s not going to be problematic.  With that as a brief intro I’d like Bill Fitzpatrick to just summarize his conclusions and then take any questions you may have.  Bill, if you just remind the Board of your background.

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick stated I appreciate the opportunity to both respond in writing to your questions and to have this opportunity to further discuss these issues because they are good issues.  If you remember, the traffic impact study indicated that based on capacity that we did not anticipate problems with vehicles queuing and turning in and out of the facility.  However, there were concerns about whether there would be adequate gaps on Route 9A to accept vehicles exiting the site and also for southbound vehicles to wait in the southbound lane for a gap in northbound traffic and have the ability, efficiently and safely to make the left turn in.  There was a question that rose about: well, do we need a left turn lane now?    If you recall, my background was 35 years with the New York State Department of Transportation as Director or traffic engineering and safety for this Hudson Valley region so I’m very familiar with the way DOT operates and the standards that they use.  In my response to that issue: do we need a left turn lane at this point in time?  My response was: no, we really can’t justify, we do not have the criteria that DOT would demand a left turn lane, but let’s come back at a future date and rather than work on forecast, let’s work on facts and we will know what the operating conditions are whether we have queuing whether we have accidents and whether or not that’s unacceptable.  Given my background with DOT, when you ask me if a left turn lane can be – is it feasible, I will look at the standard that is in practice today and I will tell you that without purchase of additional property that does not belong to the applicant, right now we cannot do a standard left turn lane.  Well, the question is – say in a year’s time we come back and we have operational problems: what do we do?  At that point in time, we come back to this Board with our facts and if you desire we will engage DOT in a discussion and that discussion will be: let’s assume, we don’t believe this is going to happen, I think Mr. Canning agrees, but let’s assume we have unacceptable – let’s say we have tremendous queuing and a tractor trailer can’t make the left turn in without a long delay and there’s cars queuing up behind.  What do we do about that?  We go to DOT and say: “okay, here’s what our problem is.  Will you accept, based on these facts, a non-standard feature on Route 9A?”  The only way that they will accept a non-standard feature is if it is part of a mitigation for an undesirable problem and if we can show that a left turn lane, even though it may not meet the current standards in transition lengths and we may instead of a 100 foot left turn lane, maybe we’ll have a 75 foot left turn lane, if we can show them that there’s a reason to do that then chances are they would agree with us and allow us to build that non-standard left turn lane to rectify an existing problem.  What if we have an accident problem or a queuing problem and we can’t justify the DOT for a non-standard lane?  What do we do?  What I would suggest that we do is that we put constraints on the directionality of the traffic that’s going to flow in and out of that site and it’s not as difficult as it may seem because, from what I understand about the operation of the site in speaking to the owner, tractor trailers in particular are scheduled at a certain time.  He can schedule them to occur between 11 and 1 or 11 and 2 or whatever may be the off-peak hours.  If that’s not satisfactory or say we try it and we don’t get satisfactory compliance with it, which would be unusual because we’re saying to them “we won’t take your delivery unless you come at certain hours.”  What if that doesn’t work?  Then we can say, all right, we’ll ask for a prohibition from DOT for left turns in based on vehicle size or based on hours of the day.  We don’t want them between 7 and 9 in the morning or 4 to 6 in the evening when we have heavy flow of Route 9A traffic.  So, there are definitely mitigation that we can implement if we have this problem.  This is all said with the idea, we don’t think we have a problem but it’s forecast, let’s work on facts.  Whether it’s the left turn lane; do we need a left turn lane?  Do we have adequate gaps for people coming out of the site for our tractor trailers?  We will know that as we gather our data and come back to you and ask you: is this acceptable?  Actually, we won’t be asking you because we’re going to know.  We’re going to know whether it’s acceptable from an operational standpoint, from a safety standpoint and if it’s not we have to make changes. 
Mr. David Steinmetz asked some have said that the building at the front of the property is the problem as to why we can’t create the left turn lane.  Could you address that?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded the problem in implementing a fully standard left turn lane is the length of the entire system from transition to transition.  It’s not the width, not the depth end of the property.  The building has no impact on whether we could do a left turn lane, standard or non-standard, it has no impact.  One of the things that we would have to do if we were going to try to justify and we had an accident history, had a queuing problem in a year’s time and we go to you and you tell us to go to DOT what we’re going to have to show them is that we can justify a non-standard design and in order to even attempt to fit that in, Mr. Canning is right, we’d have to relocate the driveway.  We’d have to move it to the south.  If we keep the driveway the way it is we’re going to have a very difficult time getting even a non-standard transition southbound but if we move things than we might be able to do it and DOT might accept it.  If they said no to it, if they didn’t feel the problems were sufficient for a non-standard left turn lane then we would have to implement, at your direction, certain constraints on the operation of that site.  That’s really what we’re talking about now.  To summarize the comments and they’re good comments because Route 9A is heavily travelled, we all know that and whenever you have trucks at a site the first reaction is: how’s that going to operate?  And, how is it going to affect traffic flow?  Keep in mind that 82% of this operation, relative to vehicles in-and-out, are pickup trucks.  We’re talking about a nominal amount of tractor trailers and we’re further saying we can schedule them for off-peak hours and we’re further saying we’ll be back in front of you with all sorts of data and we will be guided by what you want, guided by what Mr. Canning wants and we will see whether we have a problem or not.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated when you have your facts, as you put it, and you go to the DOT, how long is that process from the time you present and get the approval and build the left turn lane if it’s needed?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded the construction of the lane is going to take a little bit of time.  Going to DOT is problematic now, there is always a delay but they will give you guidance.  When you submit a preliminary plan they will sit with you fairly quickly, I would say within two or three weeks and say: tell us why you’re asking for this and tell us why maybe it needs to be shorter than a standard system.  And we would tell them that and based on that they’d say: okay, we concur or we don’t but if they concurred we then go back within a week, 10 days, we have a final plan and we take out a Highway Work Permit application.  It probably would take four weeks to get the Permit and then it would be incumbent upon us to hire the contractor, have inspection of the project, and implement it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so a reasonable amount of time what would you say that would take in your expert opinion?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded from the process of going to DOT and actually getting the Permit I would say two months and play it safe three months, but I would say two months. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and then the construction phase?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded then the construction depending on the time of the year we’re in then the construction phase –
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so it could be six months, easily?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded if we hit the weather wrong, it might be but that would be doubtful.  What we’re proposing, as long as we don’t have a terrible winter, if we were trying to construct during November/December we probably would be able to do it. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated if I can add response to Mr. Kessler on that.  Our client has assured us that in the event that we hit this unlikely eventuality that somehow there was a problem and we all decided in conjunction with your Board that we were going to DOT, at that point we would clearly impose operational restrictions.  I’m addressing that because, though none of us like the fact that there’s a protracted duration, but during that duration, whether it’s two months or six months, we’ll eliminate the issue.  Anything else that you folks have for Mr. Fitzpatrick?

Mr. Robert Foley asked if you had to resort to scheduling the larger trucks how is that controlled?  Are they going to follow that schedule or if they don’t where are those trucks that arrive out of the schedule?  Where do they go?  Dally up the street or what?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded Mr. Malone has indicated to me, because I asked specifically: who owns these trucks?  How do we control that?  He said most of the time, relative to the tractor trailers, it’s his trucks.  He sends the trucks out to get the material and then comes back.  He can schedule that.  On the rare occasion when someone wants to deliver a tractor trailer full of product to him it doesn’t come unexpected, it’s scheduled.  They call him and let him know and he would at that point say to him “number 1 don’t come between  7 and 9” or whatever the hours may be and maybe number 2 “don’t approach this site from the north.  Go down and approach it from the south.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated instead of taking the Welcher Avenue exit onto 9A, one would take the Montrose exit down below and that’s clearly achievable, meets State DOT specs for turning alignment for tractor trailers.  It’s a fair question Mr. Foley.  We think we can address that.  We don’t think we’re going to need to but that kind of operational restriction or constraint could be placed. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked if you had to relocate the driveway, how would that affect that building that’s right there at the driveway?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded based upon grade and space, Madame Chair, we believe that there’s, as Mr. Canning had indicated, there is enough room for that driveway to shift to the south to sit below or south of the building and the driveway would come down grade and behind or east of the existing building.  It would actually be in between two different buildings and then work its way towards where you saw the scale.  If you want we can show you on a map.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I thought until the last sentence I thought I was following but down in between the two buildings I’m not sure what you’re saying. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it would be a longer driveway?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.  It would be a longer driveway and it would be angular northeasterly into the site rather than direct west/east into the site. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I believe that’s what one of the citizens brought up at the last hearing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what you’re saying essentially though is that building would not be moved.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.  It would not be moved and there is adequate area and we’ll…
Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick stated here’s the existing entrance and this is the plan that actually lays out the potential lane.  The building is right here and we would just shift, and again there’d be a change in the internal traffic circulation which shifts the entrance to the south of the building and enter there.  It would change the approach to the scale and all that.  It would still be a 90 degree entrance but internally we would have to loop around differently, that’s all. 

Mr. John Klarl asked but the building remains?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the building’s nothing. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the other reason that I brought up about moving the building was also creating a larger frontage and impact visual impact, more room to buffer, etc.  It wasn’t just for internally. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked anything else that we can address?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded I guess I like what I hear about the coming back in a year with the empirical data but maybe we can avoid that issue altogether if we were to agree now to have limits to operational hours when trucks are now, as a result of this Resolution should we get to that point, hopefully, put in a condition that would say that only deliveries would only be allowed between certain periods of time and that may obviate the need in a year to do anything more about it.  In other words, put the operational restrictions in now. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated if we can address that Mr. Bianchi.  I absolutely understand why you would ask that and throw that out there as something that needs to be evaluated and if the data that we had and if the data that your expert presented indicated that that was a prudent thing, let alone a necessary thing to do right now, I’d sit down and you’d impose that as a condition.  I think however that based upon what we’ve presented to you and what your expert has concluded, imposing those restrictions right now, based upon the information in front of you, would be onerous and unnecessary.  What I would ask you to do is to hold off on that, to retain the power to impose that if it’s appropriate but to not constrain my client.  The fact of the matter is, you have a lot of other businesses along Route 9A, some of which have trucks and pickups and other things, that go in and out northbound and southbound, that don’t operate with that restriction.  I would ask you to not impose that restriction on my client unless and until you determine that you had to do that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s not like you were perfectly willing to do that, yes in a year if we had the data to support it but my question is I don’t see why that could not be done now?  I understand what you’re saying and why couldn’t we impose that as a condition now?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded there’s a real simple answer for that.  It’s because my team is pretty confident, I can’t say categorically it’ll never happen, but they’re pretty confident and my client is pretty confident, the issue is not going to materialize so if the issue is not going to materialize: why impose a business constraint on oneself?  It’s like your business or mine: why agree to something that ties your hand behind your back unless it needs to be done?  If it needs to be done, it’s fair, the government should do that.  If it doesn’t, why are we imposing a condition?  It seems like an unfair condition if there’s no basis for it right now.  That’s why we’re saying, and I think the suggestion from your consultant, we’re seeing it more and more now in municipalities.  We’re now getting to the point where municipalities are less willing to rely upon projections and models and are now saying – Tom I’m seeing this everywhere, they’re starting to say: come back in a year, come back in two years.  Applicants are being asked to basically take an approval and submit themselves to coming back and having jurisdiction imposed a year from now with new conditions.  The reason’s simple, because we want to make sure you’ve done it correctly.  We want to make sure the data we gave you was good and if the data was wrong, the projections were inaccurate or you don’t like the conditions you’ve imposed, you’d get the opportunity then.  I’d ask you not to do that now.  I know it seems like it might be…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I understand.  The other question I have is more procedural.  If we impose a condition to return in a year with this data what enforcement capability do we have to require the applicant to do what he said he’s going to do?
Mr. John Klarl responded there has to be an understanding, Tom, reached in the Resolution and where it specifically says if we happen to make certain findings they’ll do certain things. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and if he doesn’t?

Mr. John Klarl responded then…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked can we retract the Special Permit?

Mr. John Klarl responded that’s one of the things if he didn’t live up to a conditioned Resolution.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I know you’ve done that in other Special Permit Resolutions and that’s what I’m assuming Mr. Klarl would crack on this.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I just want to understand that that would be the penalty for not complying with the condition should we agree with it.

Mr. John Klarl stated certainly one of the penalties, yes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated he’s investing a lot of money on this property.  He’s already invested a lot of money.  He’s cleaned up this property for years and years of contamination.  He’s not going anywhere.  He wants to be a good citizen.  He is a good citizen of the community.  It’ll be complied with. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’d also like to hear from Mr. Canning about his view point on what was said. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated before we have Mr. Canning I’m just curious as to how the applicant proposes to monitor traffic conditions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you Ed, because I was about to ask that same question.

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded the idea would be we would be gathering data throughout the year as to the timing of delivery, as the characteristics of the delivery, the type of vehicles being used, so all the data that we took from historical information or from other sites that we have studied and we’ve applied it to this site, well we would be gathering that same data so in a year’s time we come back to you and say “okay, in the month of June we had this, in July we had this, we have all that data.”  The operation, they gather data every day.  It’s not something that they have to do special.  They know how many tractor trailers.  They know what day they came in, what hour they came in, etc.   So, we would have all of that.  The other thing that we would do, we would spend a period of time, pick typical days and just watch traffic, measure gaps, measure delays in exiting the site, measure delays in entering the site and of course the number of vehicles and the classifications of the vehicles.  A lot of the data that we presented to you as a forecast we now would be presenting to you as factual data after an operation of a year’s time. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so when you said 82% of the vehicles will be pickup truck type vehicles, two-axle type vehicles, that’s based upon the operations of the other facilities that you’ve observed?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded the operation of other facilities and we had a month of this operation that we based that on.  We checked that. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’d like you to use traffic counters just to corroborate some of that data.

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded well, if we were talking about tremendous flows of traffic then we could do traffic counters.  It’s much easier to have an individual out there who can see exactly what’s going on.  Traffic counters can’t measure the gap time, where an individual will and that would be part of his responsibility.  As Mr. Canning said, well are we going to have enough gaps in the flow for a tractor trailer to exit the site without undue delay or making a movement that’s not desirable because he’s been delayed then we need to see that and we need to know that. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I was referring to traffic counters for vehicles entering and exiting the site. 

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded I believe, if I’m correct, that every product that enters the site is accounted for and that includes the type of vehicle and the time and the amount of material. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated right, but in all due respect though I’d like to have some automated system. 

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded the problem with that we could put a counter there but we won’t have the classification of vehicles.  

Mr. John Canning stated from Adler Consulting.  Starting at the end, if you put tubes down on a short driveway, it’s often problematic for a number of reasons: 1) if the vehicles are not going straight over the tubes but are turning because they are long vehicles and so the axles don’t hit at the same time it distorts the count, the number of vehicles and the type of vehicle.  2) Depending on where you put the tubes the driveway goes down quite steeply, so if you try and put the tubes so that you can get the vehicles going straight further back down the driveway it’s going to be on a slope and these vehicles are going to be applying their breaks and the tubes are going to get torn up.  They can certainly put them out and try.  My experience has been, when you want to document the number and type of vehicles, the most accurate way to do it is to have somebody sit there for a day and just count and record every 15 minutes the size and type of entering and exiting vehicles.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked so that would be somebody hired by the Town paid for by the developer?

Mr. John Canning responded they could be hired by the Town, paid by the developer, they could be hired by the developer and reviewed by the Town.  You could send it out to a consultant to make sure that the studies were done correctly.  You could have them advise you when they were having it counted and you could go out yourself and make sure that the people that were counting were actually counting and not asleep at the wheel.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is it possible to have some kind of video surveillance of what’s coming into the…

Mr. John Canning responded I would imagine that it is.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would that be acceptable if you could actually see the vehicles, if it was positioned so that we could actually see each vehicle so we would know what type it was, how many axles and we could record the day and the time of day it was coming in?  Is that acceptable?

Mr. John Canning responded what that will mean is that somebody’s going to have to watch 8 hours of video to determine…
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded not necessarily.  We could fast forward it if we feel like it. 

Mr. John Canning stated we did it in Scarsdale for years and the fastest we can go is 6 times and we’ve done months, and months of data and I’ve had people fall asleep in front of that screen waiting for the next truck to arrive.  It’s definitely doable.  You can do it about 6 times and…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked 6 times meaning what?

Mr. John Canning responded 6 times regular speed.  The technology that we’ve worked with, once you get beyond 6 times regular speed it will skip.  The way it gets faster is it skips chunks so then you can have a truck go in and a chunk that skipped. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is having somebody just sit there much better?  It’s boring just to be sitting there.  We all recognize that’s not what I would want to be doing with my day.  I’m just saying it’s necessary but it’s boring.

Mr. John Canning responded the Town could certainly contract with a video company with the applicant’s permission to place a video looking across the driveway for a day or a week and then the Town could contract with somebody – maybe by that stage the software will be available to accurately do the count for you.  In fact, in Scarsdale we have now got where they take snapshots of the vehicles coming in so we now don’t have to look at it 16 times.  The problem is that when the machine breaks down, as it does, you don’t know it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we wouldn’t necessarily be looking to record this daily any more than you would send somebody out there daily.  If it broke down, you might have three or four days, different days of the week, different times of day so you would get some information from it and hopefully it wouldn’t be broken or out of order so long that it would make anything impossible in terms of that month.  I think somebody needs to monitor the camera to be sure that it’s working but once it breaks down for a day or two and it gets repaired we’re back in business for that month.  We’re not trying to measure every single day of every hour of every day of each month.  I don’t know why video surveillance wouldn’t, at least in my mind, do as good a job as somebody just sitting there waiting for the next thing to come. 

Mr. John Canning responded it’s certainly an option.  In a year from now, if this application is approved, Mr. Vergano can ask the applicant to do it and if the applicant consents they may indicate it now.  There may be some issues of privacy I don’t know.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re aiming it at the driveway.  What are people going to do in a driveway?

Mr. John Canning responded these days…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ve already told you we voluntarily consent to an evaluation a year after the site is open.  Whatever the generally accepted and appropriate methodology is, whatever you decide, whether you want your consultant to do it or ours, it’ll be done.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m not talking about this after the fact.  In other words, if we’re trying to build a year’s worth of data, I would want the camera to go in at the beginning so we can measure on a monthly basis a few days of the month to see what the traffic is.  That’s how we would, in my mind, gather the data then you present to say we’re not having a problem or we are having a problem.  I don’t want to wait after a whole year to say let’s get the data together based on what we see here or there or somewhere else.
Mr. John Canning responded let me give you a dollar amount.  That’s going to cost $25,000 a year to do.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what? To put the camera in?

Mr. John Canning responded not even to put the camera in.  To count the camera.  We’ve done it for Scarsdale for 8 years and it’s about $12,000 every six months, we do it every six months.  They have cameras in, they send us the files.  There’s always problems.  We end up looking at the snapshots for four months out of the six months and sitting in front of the video for two months and then we have to summarize it all up.  At this point, I think I’d like to take a step back and try and put your minds at ease to the extent that I can.  This is an existing facility.  I’m sure you’ve all been there.  I’m sure you’ve seen how busy or how not busy it is.  The applicant has requested to be permitted to increase the capacity of the facility substantially.  I think it’s approximately 450 tons per month now give or take and they want to increase that to over 1,000 tons per month potentially. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated basically triple it. 

Mr. John Canning responded possibly yes.  They performed a traffic study using all of the accepted standards and these analyses all indicated that it would pass with flying colors.  The issue that I, as your consultant, raised is that the standard analyses do not, in my opinion, give adequate consideration to the impact of truck traffic on intersections and this project has a very substantial amount of truck traffic.  So, what I did is, using my experience or engineering judgment, did additional analyses to try and factor in what would happen if the operation of the facility was increase three-fold and the truck traffic would be, as they’ve indicated, 25% very large trucks and the rest of them moderately sized trucks.  When I did that analysis it indicated that both exiting the driveway and turning left into the driveway, those conditions would start to bump up against the levels that would be considered undesirable.  They weren’t way over it.  They were starting to bump up against it.  For example, in the letter that I sent you dated October 1st, I did an analysis of what it would take to require a left turn lane and the traffic study indicated that there would be 9 vehicles turning left into the site.  I said, if each of those was a truck of substantial size, equating a truck to 2 vehicles, I said if 18 vehicles were to turn left into the site for the a.m., which I believe was the back page, it said that the arrival rate over the service rate would be 0.0157 and for a 35 mph road with a design speed of 45 mph the value where you should start to consider installing a left turn lane was 0.0225 which is considerably greater than 0.0157.  In the p.m. for the same analysis, again I assumed that at each truck was the equivalent of 2 cars so instead of 9 vehicles turning left in, in the face of so many opposing and so many following behind it was 18 the value was 0.0233 which was just more than 0.0225.  So, that indicates that if operations increase substantially, and if the level of truck activity materializes you will bump up against a value where you should be contemplating whether you need to install a left turn lane.  It’s not way over it and why we have recommended that they come back to you in a year is to be proactive and preemptive.  Let’s not wait 3 years until they’re operating at 3 times the level of capacity, let’s come back a year from now and when they’re 1 ½ times, 2 times and we know we’re nowhere near that level of operation and see what the performance is and at that time you, as a Board, can make a decision as to whether the projections were accurate or there’s likely to be a problem going forward if capacity increases and at that time there are measures which you could implement, including saying rather than going to 1,350 tons we want you to limit that at a 1,000 and come back in another year or you could have left turn prohibitions into the site from 7 to 9 or 4 to 5, whatever the problem hours are.  There are certain measures that you could proactively implement at that time.  I think it’s wonderful that you are giving so much consideration to this application but I just want to remind you that, as your consultant, I’m giving it the hard look and I’m recommending preemptive measures as opposed to waiting until operation’s increased to 1,350.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked John, one thing struck me as I read your report, in your discussion of trucks exiting.  The assumption here from which you draw your conclusion is that it takes just one second more for a truck to enter a highway than it does a car?

Mr. John Canning responded that’s with the standard analysis. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand that’s a standard, yet here you just went through a discourse about how you increased the standard to measure the entering the site.  Have you done the same for trucks exiting the site? 

Mr. John Canning responded absolutely. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated to me it’s a truck, you have an incline and somehow you know one second for a, maybe perhaps a pickup, but certainly for a larger truck would seem to be an amount of time that just to get up to speed in an exit would be a problem?

Mr. John Canning responded in my previous report, on page 3 I performed an analysis and the analysis was based on…
Mr. Steven Kessler asked June 14th report?

Mr. John Canning responded June 14th.  This is for exiting trucks.  It assumed a waited average with 20% of vehicles which would be 5 axle trucks, large, heavy trucks and that they would require 12.8 seconds instead of 6.4 seconds to get out so twice what a car requires.  20% would be 3 axle vehicles requiring 50% more than a car which was 9.6 seconds as opposed to 6.4 seconds and the remainder would be pickup trucks or cars and stuff like that.  When I did that analysis I found that the projected delay in the a.m. peak hour was 29.6 seconds exiting the site and in the p.m. peak hour it was 57.1 seconds exiting the site which, to me, is starting to get up there.  If it takes you a minute to get out of the site, that’s a long time and you should be thinking about where you go from there.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked where do you go from there?

Mr. John Canning responded the purpose of coming back a year from now is to see if this analysis – because this is an analysis based on my experience.  I took these numbers instead of 6.4 seconds, 12.8 it was an assumption.  The purpose of coming back a year from now is to see whether these projections were reasonable.  They’re going to do gap studies whether they overestimated, or under estimated, I suspect that – I’m usually conservative.  If this Board feels that allowing operations to continue to increase would present a problem for exiting vehicles then they can make a recommendation that capacity would be limited at a certain amount unless the applicant can identify additional measures to increase capacity.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what is entailed, this is your June 14th report, in a detailed volume and delay analysis?

Mr. John Canning responded we have a machine and basically what you do is you sit at the driveway and when a vehicle pulls up to the driveway you press button ‘A’ and it leaves the driveway you press button ‘B’ and you do that for as long as you’re instructed to and then you download the computer and it will tell you there were 49 vehicles in the count period, the delay for each one was 3 seconds, 10 seconds, 40 seconds, 60 seconds.  The average delay was 35 seconds.  That is basically what I was contemplating.  It will tell you the delay for each vehicle that goes out and then average for them and then the number of vehicles.  Mr. Fitzpatrick is correct, this facility, everyday they keep a log of how many vehicles came in, how many tons came in, how many tons went out, and over the course of the year they’ll say the average month is this and when the studies are done I would suggest that the Town direct the applicant to indicate how many tons of material were received on the day the surveys were done and they should be somewhat in line.  It’s not going to be a perfect match with the average day on the average month and then you’ll take those values and use them to project.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on that same subject I was going to ask you earlier when you were discussing cameras versus people counts.  When you have the human being counting as opposed to the automatic and you gave a good reason why couldn’t do the electronic with the sloping driveway and the turning ratios and all that: do you work in two-person teams?  The reason I bring it up, I’ve witnessed in the past, maybe not your group, where if you have only one and the person gets distracted or takes a break or puts their umbrella up during a rainstorm if they’re out there counting.  Do you have two people so you don’t miss anything?

Mr. John Canning responded it depends on the complexity of the intersection.  If it’s a relatively simple intersection or it’s a relatively simple count, we’ll have one person.  If we don’t feel that one person can accurately count all that’s going on, for example if it’s a four-way intersection and there’s a lot of pedestrians and a lot of turning movement…

Mr. Robert Foley stated in this case, on 9A straight-away and just the entrance/exit road what – one or two?

Mr. John Canning responded I would do a number of things.  The first thing I would do is I’d have one person count the driveway including how many cars are going by in either direction on 9A and how many are turning in, that’s a standard intersection count.  In addition to that, I would have a delay count just as I described with the machine that counts how long it takes each vehicle for exiting vehicles and I’d also do that for the southbound left turn for entering vehicles because that will give you not only the average delay for turning vehicle it will give you the average queue behind that vehicle and the average queue behind all vehicles.  That would be three people.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you would have a pretty fail safe system with two or three people.

Mr. John Canning responded well, we’re not just looking at one thing. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I understand.  Also, and I brought it up I think at the work session, maybe part of your area or the applicant himself.  On commercial trucks versus private cars bringing material in your reports have mostly focused on the trucks I believe and then the cars on 9A, but is there any way – in other words, with a one entrance exit and the safety of it onto 9A, does that get confusing from past experience?  You said Mr. Canning you know their facility in Elmsford.  If you have private vehicles going in with an air conditioner, whatever as opposed to the larger trucks or the pickup commercial trucks, does that cause any confusion or safety problems coming in and out from 9A to your facility?

Mr. John Canning responded I can answer the part of 9A.  Internal to the facility, I’m really not qualified to answer.  At the driveway at 9A it’s essentially like any other driveway, you get in line, the guy in front of you if they’re trying to get onto the street waits until there’s no traffic going, they go and then you go.  It doesn’t matter whether you’re private or public and it’s no different than other intersections or driveways.  Plus, the level of activity, the traffic study indicates that there will be 18 vehicles coming if I’m going from memory pretty much and 18 vehicles going out in the peak hour.  That’s 36 vehicles in the peek hours either entering or exiting the facility.  That’s basically one every two minutes.  The issue really is not the volume of traffic in and out of the site, it’s what impact the larger trucks are likely to have either on 9A because they’re waiting to make a left turn in because 9A is a busy road and you don’t just step on the gas on a truck and zip in.  If you’re in a car and there’s a gap, you’re gone.  The issue is trucks on 9A and we’ve requested that they look at that and then it’s hard to get out onto 9A because it’s busy, especially if you’re a truck because you can’t just step on the gas and zip into a 7 second gap.  The volumes are low and the analyses indicate that it should be okay but we’ve asked for a proactive study before they increase capacity substantially to the levels that they’ve requested just to make sure that everything is going the way that they have projected. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked you don’t foresee any safety problems even on a Saturday – I don’t know whether there are operations on a Saturday, if people and individual private cars decided to bring recyclable material in that you would handle and are mixed in with commercial large trucks with one entrance/exit, there wouldn’t be a safety problem?  It’s up to the drivers?

Mr. John Canning responded I don’t anticipate that business on a Saturday is going to be dramatically more significant but I think that the applicant should answer to that and in the event that they should have a special event because occasionally the County will have events up at Cortlandt at the park there. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the chemical cleanup at FDR or someplace. 

Mr. John Canning continued if they decide to do something like that then I would say that they should have a police officer assist.  Do you want to address how busy things are on Saturday versus a regular week day?
Mr. Robert Foley stated in the mix commercial and private vehicles.

Mr. Tom Malone stated the facility isn’t open on Saturday.  If we were to decide to be open on Saturday, typically what happens is you have much less commercial vehicles because most businesses don’t operate on Saturdays and you may have an increase in private individuals but in our other facilities the amount of individuals, one person in their own car bringing us one item, you referenced an air conditioner is very, very rare.  It does happen but it’s very, very rare that you’ll have a resident bringing in one item like that to us.  Typically, if it does happen it would be on a Saturday and the commercial traffic is much less on Saturdays.
Mr. Robert Foley stated and with the smaller commercial pickups with the guys leaving off aluminum siding or whatever versus the big 5 axle and smaller tractor trailers, there wouldn’t be a safety, from your experience in Elmsford?
Mr. Tom Malone responded no. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m just wondering if there was a wider entrance/exit or even a separate one for the smaller vehicles from a safety standpoint. 

Mr. Tom Malone responded we are proposing to widen the entrance so we will have quite a bit – I think we’re widening by 12 feet.  On a percentage basis that’s quite a bit more.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if there are any people in the audience who would like to address this particular issue or any issue on this particular application, feel free to come up.  This is a public hearing. 

Ms. Joan Knapp stated in Montrose.  I just have a couple of questions regarding the traffic.  I know that they can control the number of tractor trailers coming in but how can you control the number of individual pickups coming in at any one certain time?  Like any other business you don’t know if you’re going to have three people coming in at one time or if you’re going to have 50 people coming in at one time and when they do line up one thing that I know it probably isn’t enforced that much but Westchester County does have an idling law where anything above 32 degrees you’re not supposed to idle for more than 3 minutes so how is that going to be addressed too, the pollution issue on the site?  As far as counting the number of trucks, I don’t think we should really leave that ever up to an applicant because it’s kind of defeating the purpose.  Someone is going to keep track of themselves.  You don’t want to distrust somebody but how much effort are they really going to put into that, ‘x’ number of vehicles are coming in, they are off-loading certain vehicles, they are entering and exiting: how can we expect them during the course of the regular business to have to do that as well?  I think that should really be done by an outside monitor.  I know that they’re bringing in copper seal and aluminum and is that the vehicle counts going to be just for that type of material or also the other household items and the cars that are being brought in too?  Some of the cars are coming in on flatbeds.  Is that counted into the tonnage that they’re allowed to operate on?  Within the traffic report it said that the unsignalized level of service is already at a ‘D’ for the control delay per vehicle, so we’re already at that point for some of the traffic counts already.  So, how far do we have to get?  I keep coming up here.  Every time I come here I preach to you about the traffic on 9A and yes it is a State road and yes there are businesses that are operating on that State road but you also have to realize that Montrose is mainly residential and people who are residents, who live there are utilizing this road.  Mr. Canning talked about trying to make a left hand turn out of there and you may have to wait a minute.  I can tell you that in the morning if I take my husband to the train station, I make a left out of Victoria Avenue, I’m sitting there for more than a minute at quarter of 7 in the morning and if he takes the later train at 7:20 I’m sitting there for more than a minute in the morning already.  So, already the traffic is at that point and this is with a car.  This isn’t a truck trying to exit a piece of property at a peak hour.  I think this really needs to be looked at.  Yes, there are traffic studies done but the people who live there can tell you better what really is going on with this traffic.  I think you really need to take a look at that.  All of these businesses here – Brookfield has done a wonderful job of – I said it here before and I’ll say it again, they’ve cleaned that property up and I think they can run a great business but the traffic is really problematic in that area.  It’s not getting any better.  There are little streets now; Lancaster, Kings Ferry, Trolley Road, people are trying to avoid this traffic. They are going out to these other areas now.  It’s going into the smaller neighborhoods.  Montrose can’t be a pedestrian area if we have all these trucks coming up and down and all this traffic.  We really need to take a look at it now.  Businesses and residents can co-exist but maybe this type of business has too much of a volume of traffic to be operating there.  He wants to be a regional center to take in all this material and then transport it down to Elmsford.  Every time you’re transporting in and out that’s a trip in and a trip out.  These numbers just are not adding up.  I think we really need to take a look at that.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else?

Mr. John Debenedictis stated 35 Westminster Drive.  Are we still using the 200 vehicle a day estimate?  Have we decided whether it be trucks or pickup trucks or some guy who straps a refrigerator to his Toyota brings it in there.  Was that finally decided?  Whether the 200 number was several meetings ago, is that still affirmative?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t recall that as a number.

Mr. Robert Foley there was a number someone cited, I think Mr. Canning mentioned 200 and then Mr. Fitzpatrick had a lower number. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 200 a day. 

Mr. John Debenedictis stated 200, okay.  Again, all the fancy analysis here it would just put some common sense into this thing and give it the common sense test.  If this operation runs for 10 hours a day, 14 but let’s just say it runs at 14 hours a day, if you have 200 vehicles, whether it be trucks or whatever, that’s a movement at about every 5 minutes over a 14 hour period and that’s a lot of movement on that road there.  I don’t care if it’s going north, south or east or west.  200 trucks over a 14 hour period is – 200 vehicles whether it’s a truck or it’s a vehicle, it’s still a movement that over a 14 hour period – now of course we could do the math and we could say how it’s going to work at 16 hours, 18 hours but that’s still a lot of movement every 5-6 minutes.  Then we talk about restricting the thing.  About 3:00 the Hendrick Hudson busses start pounding down 9 going to the Middle School and going up towards Furnace Woods.  I just keep asking the same question: what is going to happen when this thing grows up?  This is almost like having your kids.  You say to your kids, if you behave you can get the new X-Box game or whatever and for a week they really behave and then as soon as they get it they go back to their old ways.  That’s what I’m kind of wondering what’s going on here because if you drive by nothing’s going on.  You see 4 or 5 flattened cars in there, of course they have all those garbage trucks that are sitting there that have to be towed out there now whether they’re going to be towed going north or they’re going to be towed going south but they’re going to end up, I guess, down at Elmsford.  Like I say, I think we’re all on our best behavior here until this thing gets approved and then all of a sudden we’re going to have these 200 vehicles, and I don’t care if they are cars, trucks, whatever, are going to be pounding in there every 5 or 6 minutes.  Something just doesn’t make good common sense.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anyone else?  Is there anyone on the Board who wishes to make an additional comment?

Mr. Robert Foley responded yes, I just wondered because it was based on what Ms. Knapp just said and I thought of it too.  Did Mr. Canning and/or Mr. Fitzpatrick – I know you were there to focus on 9A and the entrance/exit impacts but when cars are avoiding bottlenecks to get to the station or school or pick up their kids, they do tend to go through secondary roads to find a shorter route to their destination.  Is that factored in at all in these traffic studies to see where neighboring road, maybe a half mile away in an intersection is impacted negatively because of a situation where there’s a buildup on the main road?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded that’s a very difficult question to answer because the gathering of data would be very complex.  You would have to do almost an origin/destination study with literally dozens of people stopping traffic asking where they’re coming and where they’re going.  It can be done.  It’s usually done for something that’s going to generate a very large number of vehicles.  This site is not going to generate a very large number of vehicles.  I would suggest that as you have a retail site on a 9 acre site or a retail establishment on a 9 acre site you actually may get more tractor trailers into that than you will here.  What you’re asking was it as part of the traffic study, no it was not.  It’s a very unusual request, and very difficult and complex to achieve. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s done with subdivisions or, as you said, large shopping areas where we ask for ELOS’s and intersections that are not adjacent to it but nearby. 

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick stated if I understand your question, I may have misunderstood it, you’re suggesting how many people may divert from the main highway because it is getting congested to alternate route.  That’s what I’m saying is very difficult to measure. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated just overall, if an intersection a half mile away is negatively impacted from a safety standpoint too and whether you determine if the cause is a problem you may have on 9A with your trucks. 
Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick stated in this particular application if we took a look at some external intersection and we would have an existing condition, we would be able to measure what the operation was.  We would not be able to tell how many people were turning there to take an alternate route but we could tell what the existing level of service was.  We then add our 18 vehicles per hour and disperse them and I can suggest to you that those numbers will have no impact on the level of service of these external intersections.  The impact that we have potentially with this site would be that portion of the generation that are tractor trailers and again, whether it’s this site or any site, you have tractor trailers trying to leave the site, enter the site, they will cause the most disruption, potentially.  Our task here was to measure what we thought would occur and we do not reach any of the criteria levels that would require any mitigation.  However, we’ve said this before, it’s all forecast so let’s use the right numbers, let’s use the real numbers, let’s come back and do this and see what we have and then, as a Board and in conjunction with DOT if you wish, do you then set limitations and constraints and demands that are based on facts.  In my opinion, in my experience over the years this will not be a problem but that’s just based on what Mr. Canning said, based on our experience.  We can be wrong, not too often I hope, but we can be wrong. 

Mr. John Bernard asked Mr. Canning you had something else to say?

Mr. John Canning responded I understand the neighbor’s concern about traffic on the other streets and I recognize that at many applications you asked the applicant to study this street and that street and the other street.  The issue here, in this application, is not the volume it’s the type of activity and it’s really at the driveway; truck turning in and trucks turning out.  If the applicant was requested to do a traffic study to look at Victoria Avenue or Trolley Road or any other road it would probably result in the following; existing conditions an average of one minute to get out onto 9A.  The application is proposed to add 22 trips in the roadway in the peak hour half will go north, half will go south.  If I add 11 cars to 9A in front of Victoria Avenue, the delay is going to go from 60 seconds to 60.5 seconds and it doesn’t make it any better for people who live on Victoria Avenue who are trying to get out.  Frankly it’s still going to suck but they’re not going to notice a difference.  Just to reference the 200 trucks per day.  The last time I was here I was asked: “how many trucks per day do you think there’s going to be?”  And, I off the cuff said up to 200 and on page 33 of Mr. Fitzpatrick’s report they indicated that they did a survey in April in which there were 52 truck trips.  That’s 26 trucks came in and 26 trucks went out on a typical day in April and if you multiply that by 3 you get 78 trucks per day or 156 truck trips.  That’s the order of magnitude that you are considering, somewhat less than 200.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what was that number?

Mr. John Canning responded 78 trucks; each one comes in and then goes out so it’s a 156 truck trips over the course of a typical day.  Some of them are larger and some of them are smaller. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s your numbers and then Mr. Fitzpatrick had, as I recall at the meeting and it’s in the minutes that I handed in earlier where his numbers were less than yours but I thought you said 100 or 125.
Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded I don’t recall – the numbers are in the report.  I don’t want to keep repeating this because I know you understand it.  This is all forecasting and that’s the best we can do.  We did have the April numbers and we used those numbers but that was only a month.  Give us the opportunity to give you 12 months worth of data and then we’ll be able to speak with much more definitive conclusions as to the impact.  Again, I repeat, I don’t believe there will be any impact based on my experience but let’s see for sure and the opportunity is to come back here in about a year and work with those numbers.

Mr. John Bernard asked Mr. Fitzpatrick was the 56 count per day in April that Canning just referred to was that an average for the month of April or was that just one day in April?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded the data we took was for the month of April and we broke it down by business day and that’s how we came up with those numbers. 

Mr. John Bernard asked so it was an average?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded it was an average.  It was a month’s worth of data.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else in the audience who wants to come up and say something?  I think we’ve reached a point now where we’re going to have to make some determinations about what we want to do from this point on.  I’m still a little bit conflicted.  I know that you’ve been working to do all you can to make this a good application going forward.  I still have a lot of concern about that left turn and certainly the impact on the people who live within a few hundred feet of all this turning in and turning out.  People’s lives can be changed dramatically by having to wait seconds more than they probably would have six months earlier.  We tend to talk about these projects in the aggregate, “well, when you take it as a whole it really won’t make that much difference” but it can be very, very difficult for people who live relatively close by who have to go out, as Ms. Knapp said, to take someone to school or to take a husband to the station or run out in an emergency, you never know when that’s going to happen and you’re sitting there and you’re waiting for your opportunity to get out on the road and on a daily basis it impacts your life in a way that people when you’re looking at the big picture you kind of forget about the people who really get saddled with the worst of this.  We do need to be sensitive to that and do whatever we can to help the people who live there, live a reasonably, decent life that isn’t always impacted by a lot of traffic or a lot of delay trying to get from place to the other.  It makes life miserable.  I don’t know how many people in the audience have to get to a corner or an intersection and sit and wait for numbers of seconds.  I know, I live close by Route 9 and I come out in the morning and it’s especially difficult in the winter when it’s icy.  I’ve said this many times before because whatever little gap you have as cars come barreling down, it isn’t a big gap and you have to get out on your little icy road and run out into that Route 9 traffic, you could get killed.  It isn’t something that the average person thinks about when they want to do something along Route 9 if they’ve got a big development going but it impacts the people who’ve been there living there and haven’t had to have that worry but now for as long as they choose to live there they’re going to have to worry about “can I see this car coming, can I get out here, make my turn off of this road, especially as I said in icy and snowy weather and not get killed?”  There are about 8 crosses between one section where I get on from Highland Avenue – some of you are shaking your head because you know where they are, so every time I turn into the road coming up to mine, I’m counting crosses on the road in that one tiny little section.  It is not something that we want to sneeze at.  This is my life.  I have to go to work everyday.  I don’t want to have to always look at those crosses but they’ll be there until – and they seem to be made out of some kind of plastic – they’re not going to disintegrate like wood, so they’ll be there a long time as a reminder somebody got killed and burned up in a big truck less than 18 months ago.  Two or three people got killed just a few months before that.  It is not a pleasant thought every time you go to an intersection to have to gauge whether you can make it onto the road.  All I’m saying is I feel a little bit conflicted by this because I wanted to know if we have problems can we get that lane and get that turn?  I want to know, yes, yes, yes we can do it or else I’m feeling as nice as this has been in terms of an experience, in terms of working with you guys and you were trying to work with us, it’s still to me if I can’t get some assurances that you can get that lane or you can make those changes, I’m going into this with my eyes wide open and I’m seeing the misery that you can create while one man is making a business and doing a good job other people around him are miserable. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair, if can respond to that because I think I totally, and I think my client, totally appreciates your concern and your comments and I want to see if I can remember some of the things you just covered.  I don’t think there’s been anything that my client or this development team has done that should warrant you feeling in any that they’ve been insensitive to the issues.  I think every issue that has been presented has been examined.  The good news is you have your own professionals reviewing his professionals.  Every time you asked to come onto the property, including above and beyond, we probably done more site inspections here than we’ve done of any other project, and as I said on day one and I say it now again, this is one of those projects where we all should be kind of proud that we’re actually trying to endorse and have a green business that is designed to recycle goods.  That is what he is in business to do.  In addition, as to your concerns about people in the area, my client’s a manufacturing zone, he owns 9 acres in a manufacturing zone.  There are probably a host of other uses that could be utilized and performed on this property that would be far more intense in a number of ways.  In addition, had he not come to the property in terms of environmental sensitivity and concerns for the community I can assure you that based upon what I saw and observed and I commend you to go to the DEC, had that continued, had what had been there for 40-50 years here in our community had continued, that would not have been good for the neighbors and the community at large and the flora and the fauna.  If we had heard that what we were proposing to do was going to cause multiple seconds, minutes of delay I think your comment would be 100% on the mark.  If your consultant is saying in the worse case scenario that we’re looking at a half a second delay at Victoria then I don’t think, going back to your word that you’re creating misery for anyone.  If they’re waiting 60 seconds, you’re right progress and use of property rights may result in 60.5 seconds in a manufacturing zone, it’s reality.  You, unfortunately have the tough job of balancing private property rights with public health, safety and welfare.  I submit to you that what we’ve done over the last 8-9 months is demonstrate that we can adequately protect public health, safety and general welfare.  Moreover, we’re voluntarily agreeing to come back before you in a year to do, and let’s focus on what I think really is the most important thing you said, whether it’s going to be a turning lane, or business constraints, there will be impositions in the event you determine in conjunction with DOT and your professional consultants that we need to mitigate further.  That’s going to be done.  As someone that lives here in the community I wish you had that power on a lot of other projects that have been approved by this Board and others.  I bet you’d love to have a do-over on some of the other things that you’ve done.  The good news is that he’s here tonight saying “I’m giving you a do-over if you need it.  I don’t think you’re going to need it.”  I suggest to you, close the public hearing.  You’ve got the data.  The public has spoken.  We’ve addressed the issues.  I think we’re now at a point where we can focus in on what the appropriate conditions need to be today and the commitment that we’ll come back whenever it is in the future and if there have to be more conditions we’ll look at them then.  You’ve got a terrific business and a terrific property owner and a terrific tax payer who I think is going to be a benefit, already is a benefit to this community and will be going forward.  It’s time now for you to make the tough decision, if it is, and look at it and say “you know what we’re going to endorse a green recycling business here in our community.  We’re going to endorse somebody that came in and spent a lot of his own money to clean up a condition that was perpetuated here in your community and let’s move forward.”  Hopefully we’re doing the right thing.  Loretta, you do that every night, you come here.  You have that tough decision “am I doing the right thing or not?”  The good news is this time we’re actually going to see you a year from opening day if not sooner and we’re going to make sure that everything that all the scientists and all the prognosticators presented was accurate if not, you get another bite at the apple.  I’d ask you, with all due respect folks, close the public hearing.  Let’s focus in on a Resolution and let’s move forward.
Mr. John Bernard asked Mr. Steinmetz in a year, what would trigger a change?  Would a complaint from the neighborhood trigger a change or what triggers in a year, what trigger’s the re-evaluation?  Do we have to send out Canning and Associates to do traffic studies?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Mr. Bernard two things: either you can mandate in your Resolution that there’s going to be an evaluation no matter, and that’s one thing you can do.  You say “we don’t care, spend the money, spend the time, go out there and have some guy from John Canning’s office or Bill Fitzpatrick’s office, sit there with the ‘A-B’ counter and a pad.”  That’s one thing you can do.  The other thing you can do is you’ve got paid full time professionals who know what they’re doing.  Send them out there in 9 months.  Send them out there in 10 months and send them out there in 11 months and I’ll be here at that meeting in the 11th month and we’re going to have a discussion whether we need to be here in the 12th month because Chris, and Ed, and their staffs have advised you that they’ve gathered empirical data: complaints from the community, interviews with the police chief, gathering accident data and maybe one of them will go grab a sandwich at the deli in front of the Premier Club and they’ll spend an hour or two and they’ll evaluate it themselves.  Let them come to Tom’s office and sit down and sit at the gate.  John, with all due respect to John Canning and Bill Fitzpatrick, it’s not rocket science.  I think you can go out there and gather that data pretty easily and decide whether there’s terrible queuing  Every time I leave the Cortlandt Town Center and drive back home, I know there’s queuing  I can see what I’m dealing with. 
Mr. Ed Vergano stated as much as I would love to be out there counting traffic, I think it’s important that the Town has direct control of the traffic monitoring.  That should be, once again, an outside consultant hired by the Town, paid for by the developer.  That’s very important.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I agree, Ed, with you on that and I also think I would like to have some feedback on this before 12 months.  I think maybe 6 months from now would be a good time to get some initial feedback on how things would be going so that we don’t have to wait a whole year to find out. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated my client is nodding ‘yes’ Madame Chair he will be back here 6 months from completion of the site plan improvements. 

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we close the public hearing and have staff prepare a Resolution for the next meeting.

Seconded

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question, what needs to happen now in the Resolution is we need to agree on the study period.  The periodicity of the study, the parameters so that it’s clear to the applicant and it’s clear to us and we know exactly what we’re going to get and when we’re going to get it. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated in terms of some of the things we’ve discussed those parameters would include time, what types of vehicles, the whole business of…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated number of vehicles, types of vehicles.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether you want to prepare something and then just give it to us. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’ll work with Mr. Canning to come up with something. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so by the time we get back – I would like to see this Resolution Chris and Ed before we come back on that night.  We would need to look at this before the night of the meeting next month.  I would appreciate it if we could get something to us a few days ahead. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question also, I come into here tonight and at the work session feeling that perhaps that we should keep the hearing open but I know the people have spoken.  You’ve given pretty good explanations.  I’m not totally agreeable with all them and needless to say we know you’ve done a good job of cleaning up and hopefully are going to be a good neighbor but I still have concerns about, even though you’re telling us both sides of the traffic’s consultants.  I would like to see, if I go with voting ‘yes’ tonight to close and have a Resolution, to have sooner than one year or the 6 months and again, as Loretta just discussed, if we have a Resolution at the next meeting that we get it well in advance and have specific conditions that would preclude any problems or holes in this whole thing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated which would mean that if we get it in advance we could literally go through it, add some suggestions, get it back to you so that it would be pretty much in its final form, pretty much, the night of if that’s possible.  I don’t know that it’s always possible but in this particular case maybe we need to…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we appreciate that and any help that we can provide to staff so that they have everything they need we will certainly do. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t imagine that we’ll have a wholesale re-writing of that.  They’re very good in the office.  They know what kinds of things we need to have but it still means that we might want to take a look at it and suggest one or two other items that aren’t there. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know you don’t want to move the building or knock it down, you don’t want to build a turn lane, I guess I wouldn’t too if I were the business owner at least until it could be proven.  I hope that we do this 6 months, not one year. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would like to see that.  Now, we’re still on the question, we have to vote this.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I hope that I didn’t infer that you guys were insensitive.  I think I’m very pleased with the level of work you’ve done but I was trying to say is that we need to be aware of the fact that while we’re rejoicing for whatever goodness we get somebody else sometimes is made very miserable and we know that.  That’s just the way things go.  Thank you so much.  We’ll see you next month.

PB 10-06    c.
Public Hearing: Application of Sammy Musa Eljamal of Best Rent Properties for Amended Site Development Plan approval and for Tree Removal and Wetland Permits for the construction of a new access drive on the south side of the site and for a proposed 1,728 sq. ft. convenience store and a 1,200 sq. ft. addition to the car wash at the existing gas station/car wash located on the south west corner of Route 6 and the Cortlandt Town Center Access Drive as shown on a 1 page drawing entitled “Site Plan, Proposed Site Improvements” prepared by Bohler Engineering, P.C. latest revision dated August 24, 2009 (see prior PB 25-90 & 42-94).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is the public hearing that was going to be removed and adjourned until January 2011.  If there’s anybody here who wants to address that you can come up and do so at this point but we will be adjourning this until 2011.  Nobody’s here to do that. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I move to adjourn this case to January 2011.

Seconded, with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)
PB 24-08    a.
Public Hearing: Application of JJB Properties Inc., for the property of Homard Prod. Co. Inc., for Site Development Plan Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for the storage of 764 vehicles on a 5.1 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Arlo Lane as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan for Curry Automotive” prepared by Joel L. Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated September 21, 2010 (see prior PB 8-00).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I also announced earlier that we would likely be adjourning that to the November 3rd meeting.  Is there anyone here who wants to speak on this particular application?
Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I would like to make a motion that we adjourn this to our November meeting?  There is also an issue that we had not advertised this as a steep slope meeting and we need to do that. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it won’t be necessary if the applicant takes the development off the steep slopes.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ll advertise for steep slopes if needed. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 10-10    b.
Application of Teatown Lake Reservation Inc. for renewal of a Special Permit for a Private Nature Preserve to conduct a summer camp program and a weekday public program for property located on the north side of Teatown Road, approximately 3,000 feet east of Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Special Permit Map, Cliffdale Farm North” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated July 15, 2010.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe at this point that the Board has agreed that it will move forward and grant you this Special Permit for the next 5 years period.  We also were very pleased to find out that there had been no reports that you had been required to make these monthly reports to us since the last time you were renewed.  In as much as there have been no reports by neighbors of any problems at all, we have decided also that we would probably release you from the need to submit monthly reports provided that we don’t hear complaints.  Once we begin to hear complaints then we will reinstitute the requirement that you provide us those monthly reports.  This is a public hearing.  If there’s anybody here who would like to address this…
Mr. Kyler Cragnolin stated 226 West Mount Airy Road.  I just want to take a moment to encourage the Board to renew the Special Permit for Teatown and in so doing support the excellent and very valuable work that they are doing there.  They are engendering our young people with an environmental ethic that is very important today.  They’re nurturing the next generation of environmental stewards a very fine work by the red coons and staff has done there because they believe, as I believe, that a Town of Cortlandt which is unsuitable to be inhabited by all living creatures is a Town of Cortlandt that is unsuitable for human beings.  Thanks.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we close the public hearing and that we adopt Resolution #49-10.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-07     c.
Public Hearing: Scope for an Environmental Impact Statement for the application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” with Rain Gardens Preliminary Plat” dated December 29, 2009, “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, dated August 20, 2009 and “Upland Road Improvement Plan” latest revision dated May 24, 2010 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’m recused from this application.
Mr. John Klarl stated likewise.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated despite the fact that Mr. Kessler probably would like me to go on for the next half hour from the verbal Qs he’s just given me, suffice it to say I’m going to be very brief.  It’s a public hearing on a proposed scope.  We submitted a proposed scope.  I know staff has presented a number of potential revisions and we’re here tonight for the public to comment on the scope.  We are anxious, Madame Chair, members of the Board to come up with a fair, appropriate and focused scoping document so that we can move forward and conduct the studies that are necessary to allow your Board to take a hard look at the properly identified issues and to make sure that my client proposes adequate mitigation.  That’s what this is about and I hope we’re going to have our comments Madame Chair as I’ve seen you in the past limited tonight to commenting on the scope as opposed to other extraneous matters.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked this is a public hearing, is there anybody who wants to address this scope hearing?

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated speaking for the Croton Arboretum.  I’m very happy that you’re planning on adjourning this hearing tonight because I was going to ask you to do it, although for other reasons.  The Village of Croton, as an interested party, was noticed on the fact of this application being subjected to a SEQRA process and they really have not had time to address it.  The Village Board got the information that their comments were requested and both the Mayor and the trustees agreed that because the Arboretum is important Village property they wanted time for the Planning Board and the Village engineer to address whatever issues they find in it.  Planning Board only got to it last Thursday, so between Thursday and today there was not really time for them to comment.  In addition to which, quite apart from the Village’s concerns with the Arboretum, one of the Planning Board members discovered that there is a Village-owned property that abuts lot 4 of Upland Estates.  On that particular lot 4 there is a drainage structure, an infiltration trench and since these infiltration trenches have been the subject of a lot of comment from several consultants they intend to comment on the impacts of lot 4 onto Village property which is labeled formerly ‘McDuffy’  That was the first point I wanted to bring up that I’m very happy you adjourned the public hearing.  The second thing I wanted to bring up is I have a question and I guess the appropriate person to address it to is Mr. Lodes and that is: in terms of what must be considered or added to a scope, does the ultimate authority lie with the lead agency, in this case being the Planning Board?

Mr. Karl Lodes responded in my opinion, yes. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated so the Planning Board has the ultimate authority to decide what deletions must be restored and which deletions may be deleted?

Mr. Karl Lodes responded yes. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard asked if there were alternatives that were suggested by members of the public other than the applicant does the Planning Board have the authority to require the applicant to consider those?

Mr. Karl Lodes responded in my opinion, yes. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated thank you.  Two things I would like to bring up that I would like to see the Planning Board require the applicant to consider is: an alternative layout that would require the Upland Estate subdivision to manage all their storm water on the site.  This was a suggestion by Creative Habitat consultant who’s done a lot of work for the Town of Cortlandt and I was inspired by that suggestion to suggest a layout that would require a large treatment pond in the center of the subdivision with the houses are arranged around it.  I would like the Board to require the applicant to consider that.  I would also like to ask the Board to require the consultant to design a different and completely different storm water management system that totally eliminated those infiltration trenches for reasons that the consultants have brought forward which I need not go into now.  The other thing I wanted to bring up in terms of the Board requiring the applicant to consider; I threw a client yesterday, I had the occasion to talk with someone in Commissioner Grannis’ office being Commissioner of the DEC who assures me that it is not legal to delete any of the sections that Town staff prepared in section 4 which is environmental setting; potential adverse environmental impacts and proposed mitigation measures.  That has to be in there, it can’t be deleted no matter who wants to delete it.  The last thing I wanted to ask: I had a concern about the role and the timing of the Town’s arborist consultant.  My understanding is that their report isn’t in because they’re going to comment on the impacts on what’s being called upper Upland Lane and lower Upland Lane.  I have a couple of concerns with that which is my concern is that their report may not be on file within the deadline for comments and I think it would not be a good idea if their comments were not incorporated into the process.  The other thing I had a concern about was whether their review is limited just to the arborist’s scape, by which I mean the applicant’s arborist or whether that Town’s consultant is going to be reviewing other material that is being brought forward or whether he’s going to be able to do his own field visits to assess the situation for himself.  Those are my questions.  You’ll be very delighted to hear I’m not reading anything.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know that I can obviously answer all of your questions but I certainly know that the Board will take note of everything that you’ve said and work to the best of our ability to require the kinds of information or input that you’re suggesting.  I so far haven’t heard anything that wouldn’t be of value to us as a Board.  I don’t see that there would be any problems with that at all.  I speak for myself, however, I don’t know about the other members of the Board and what they’re thinking but I so far don’t see any real serious problems.  Whether we’re going to get everything that we’re requesting the applicant to do is another matter.  That’s usually the sticking plate.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated well, you have the power according to Mr. Lodes. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked you say not all of section 4 Karen right from geology all the way through?

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded my understanding is that – I’m not going to comment on that entirely.  Most of what I found objectionable in terms of the deletions was in 3.1 and 3.3 but my understanding from Commissioner Grannis’ office is that basically section 4 is the heart of the SEQRA law and you can’t take it out. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated some of that we are keeping in but I’m not…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t think it’s been taken out. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated a lot of it was red-lined.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re saying all the red line has to…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated not necessarily where it’s going to end up laying.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated right, it needs to come back in. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated some of it’s just words. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated one final request which is if you could direct Town staff to provide the Village of Croton engineer with copies of the layout and whatever engineering drawings and technical studies pertained to this application would be very helpful to the Village of Croton’s review. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ve got a file cabinet full of this stuff.  I would think that if someone’s contacted from the Village that they’d have to tell us what they want and they’d have to come up and have a look through the file and tell us what they want.  I can’t just copy the whole file. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I wasn’t suggesting that we go to the expense of copying – I think it’s three accordion folders of files now.  My presentation to the Village Board and the Planning Board I gave them a list of all the consultant’s reports and the drawings as I was aware of them and I think that’s the only thing that they probably would want. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s probably a couple of hundred pages, right?  If you take the neighbor’s engineering reports, the neighbor’s arborist’s reports, Mrs. Whalen prepared a big document…

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I’m not talking about the correspondence.  I’m talking about the actual technical reports.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll talk about that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m sure that in addition to time there’s probably a cost attached to that as well possibly.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well yes.  What would be more standard is the people from the Village who want the information would come and get the information.  There could be some professional courtesy but maybe they should come up and…

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded and request it?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I’ll suggest that to them but basically of the layouts and the engineering’s drawings and so on I think there are 6 or 7 copies on file aren’t there?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded he should have the drawings. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated he didn’t have them as of yesterday.  I will make that suggestion to both the engineer and to the Planning Board members in Croton. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you know Karen, maybe in terms of just saving time here because Chris has an awful lot to do for this Board and he’s probably going non-stop most of the time.  When I go by there there’s 20 things he’s doing.  If maybe they could send somebody up.  I don’t know whether it would be helpful to you to hand stuff to the person and let them copy it and then go away with it rather than you copy it.  I don’t know but I would leave it to you to make that determination but it might be helpful to send somebody to help him out so that he doesn’t have to stop the work for this Town to do it for Croton. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I’ll make the suggestion to their Planning Board members.  Thank you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who would like to address this particular scope?

Mr. John Neblo stated from 23 Upland Lane.  I don’t want to take up the Board’s time either I’d rather be very brief.  I was a little confused – I wasn’t aware was the applicant’s proposed scope of work a public document?  Did I somehow miss…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s in the file now yes.  You were mailed the Town’s version of the scope. 

Mr. John Neblo stated rather my concern, I was very happy with the Town’s scope, I’m just not aware of what the applicant’s proposing be deleted and therefore what further comment I might make as a result. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a public document.  Karen’s got it I think so you could come in to the office and get it. 

Mr. John Neblo stated certainly I’ll do that and can make written comments but basically – first I have to commend both Chris and Ed who have been fantastic throughout the process in terms of enlisting our concerns so I want to be very clear on that, particularly Ed came out came and did a site survey of our lot.  23 Upland Lane is the most directly affected property for the neighbors and specifically we went over storm water flows and I had pictures that I showed out of – it was great.  We had a heavy rain in early December and then a quick freeze and then it kind of froze the drainage patterns that come down upper Lane and how the contour of the land directs all those flows onto our property.  Ed very kindly, I think it’s in the scope, that the impact, it’s very generic though, it’s a very generic statement, the impact on 23 Upland Lane and I just don’t know if it’s appropriate.  What I should probably do is make perhaps suggestions about specific topics, the storm water in particular and I can demonstrate the water flows here if anybody’s interested, and also the proximity of the road.  If you’ve looked at the design you’ll see that it abuts our property without any setback whatsoever, it literally runs with 0 setback along our property so everything: snow removal, even the construction frankly of the road will necessitate trespass assuming that he doesn’t get permission from me somehow.  These are subsets of this generic impact statement and my question to the Board is: would you like me to itemize all these things either now or in writing or is this generic statement about impact on 23 sufficient and for all I know, did the applicant object to that as part of the scope of review?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it’s your choice; you could do it now or in writing but we could certainly be more specific on those issues that we discussed out in the field and we will be. 

Mr. John Neblo stated I want to be very sensitive to everybody’s time here and I don’t want to waste everybody’s time here.  I think perhaps the best way then is to make this public note that we do have more specific concerns that might not be adequately addressed by a generic statement about impact on 23 and I’m happy to work with Ed and Chris, who like I said have been wonderful in the process and I want to be very clear to the Board on that.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated write some specific things down.  I believe the Board, unless they’re talked out of it, might adjourn the public hearing tonight so you don’t have to do it right now.  You would have more time but write some information down for us. 

Mr. John Neblo stated I would have it to you in a matter of a couple of days if that’s the preferred route.  I just wanted to reserve that right or we can take a half hour and go through it now.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s perfectly okay to submit it to staff. 

Mr. John Neblo stated thank you again guys.  I appreciate it. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated you’re very welcome.  Thank you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else?

Ms. JoAnn Whalen stated 11 Upland Lane.  In anticipation of the late hour since we were going to be late on the agenda I have prepared a document which corresponds with the scoping document with my concerns for particularly the lower Laners.  I have copies for everybody.  I’d just like to submit it to you and you can review it at your leisure so we don’t take up any more time. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you have something that you wanted to present?
Mr. Kyler Cragnolin stated 226 West Mount Airy.  I realize that I have another 10 days to respond to this in writing which I was intending to do but then I got a sense tonight that it might be better to just address a couple of points quickly here in lieu of doing that which I’m sure you’d appreciate because the written record is quite lengthy already and we’re early on in the process here.  I think that Karen Bernard’s letter which I read today regarding scoping document is very much on point.  I’m very much in accord with that.  I think they were a lot of deletions made that should not have been made.  In fact, most of them should not have been made because they do have some relevance to our discussion here.  It’s never a problem having too much information only too little.  Also, I think care has to be taken to notice some of the things that were included rather than stricken, specifically on the one point that I’ve spoken to three times now, which was the topology and the hydrogeology of the area.  Briefly, that being that there are certain features there, specifically the shallow aquifer, the bedrock underlayment with the very thin overburden, the need to know what types of soils are there, the need to test seasonally because of the fluctuations between extreme dryness and a spring, a light winter condition where the water table tends to be very high and problematic at that time of year.  In the scoping document I think that those concerns, not only my concerns but some of these concerns that were repeated in the written record by some of the professional people that addressed them were sort of disregarded.  If you will look on page 4 under ‘geology, a)’ ‘existing conditions’ depth and nature of bedrock formations, now this is important that we have some – we have to flush this out exactly what kind of information we’re going to get there.  we’ll obviously need to know that where the septic fields are proposed to go to know what sort of situation we have there but beyond that we would need to know depth to bedrock in areas that border other properties such as Mr. Neblo’s property and what he spoke of and I did see the photographs is a graphic example of how when you have bedrock immediately below the surface when you get a flow of water normally at any other time of year you wouldn’t notice it because it would dissipate but because it was the winter time it kept depositing there so that essentially what he had was a small glacier on his back lawn.  That has some implications as far as whether we can put a septic field immediately adjacent to that property line when you have that sort of bedrock feature there.  I think we need to flush out the requirements under existing conditions, geology, as well as you’ll notice that in number 2b) they have inserted the word ‘prior’ on 2b) which, in other words what they’re saying is let the record stand on the information that’s already been give, what we already have on record and what I’ve been talking about for three months here is that’s woefully insufficient.  We need more information so that word ‘prior’ definitely has to be taken out there because it’s an attempt to avoid the whole process that so many of us are asking for here.  Going down to ‘existing topography’ and the mapping requirement I think that map should also indicate a bedrock outcrops as well so that we can see where those bedrock – I would say anything within 6 inches of the surface because if the leaves fall here we might not see the bedrock but it’s going to be there.  To see that I think it would give us all a better sense of what’s happening on the property if we can see that extensive bedrock that is there it would give us a better picture of what’s going on.  I’d also want to see the location of the test pits on the property and I would also like to see the result of those tests or any future testing.  We need to know, not soil types based on the soil conservation maps because any of us can look at those on the internet, we can see those.  Those are maps which are interpolated from aerial surveys and computer programs.  They’re not site specific.  Because of the sensitive nature of what we have here, limiting factors that make it potentially unwise to develop this location we need to test further.  We cannot do the work from the comfort of our leather chair back in the office.  We need to do some tests on sites to know: types of soils, depths of soil, depth of bedrock among other things which I’ve mentioned previously.  So, then I’ll just skip to the end very quickly, there are other things but the other question that I had was on page 12 under ‘alternatives to the proposed action.’  Obviously we’ll need to consider if we don’t build there what that alternative is but I see that the reduced impact proposal has been crossed off there and I was just wondering if that means that the applicant is – it’s my way or the highway or is he willing to consider some sort of a reduced impact proposal there.  I think it’s a very important question.  Let me know that.  Thank you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anybody else in the audience who needs to address this scope?  How about people on the Board, members of the Board?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked my only question is just the process now going forward.  The staff has issued a draft.  The applicant has redacted and made some additions to that draft.  How do we proceed here?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded Chris and I will get together and go over these documents and incorporate these comments into the document and hopefully come up with something final before the next meeting. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so you will look to see what they redacted, you will put back what you think is appropriate to put back in and you will have that all annotated throughout?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded right and as Loretta brought up at the work session we could actually color code some of the comments to differentiate between which would identify what came from the public, what came from the professionals, what came from staff, what came from the Planning Board. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the only thing that I would add in response to Mr. Kessler’s question and Ed’s response, if you have any questions as to why our team made certain redactions or insertions feel free to reach out and we’re happy to answer your questions while you’re working on preparing your recommendation. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have a question for you.  Ms. Bernard reported that she had had some advice from maybe somebody legal that it was illegal, that it was not legal to remove things from section 4.  It’s not legal to delete any of this section and I think that’s what she said.  Do you have any comment regarding that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I don’t want to comment specifically on what she said because I’d rather look at it and then provide some advice if any.  The only thing that I would say is that we have section 4 in there.  There were some textual changes within it as there are within every single section 4 of every single scope I’ve ever worked on.  If the point, if what she was saying, and the translation with Mr. Grannis’ office who we know quite well, was that section 4 needs to be in the document I wholeheartedly agree.  Section 4 is in the document and wouldn’t recommend anything other than that. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated right, she says it’s not legal to delete any portion, anything in it.  For example I’m looking at page 7 and there’s a lot of…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair there are specific requirements that have to be in a section 4 and then section 4 gets tailored to the project as presented.  So, there are words in section 4 that, for example would have no meaning in the Brookfield application and without a pos. dec. it would certainly not be in there but for the Giordano Upland application obviously those words are appropriate.  SEQRA and the 617 regulations require certain things to be within a scope.  There are certain mandates.  We’re not eliminating anything that’s mandatory.  We are tailoring the scope as staff does on every project to the project before it.  Again, I’m not sure if we’re missing the comment. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for example where you strike out letter ‘c’ under 4 ‘air resources’ and immediately all of the material in that whole section has been redacted or crossed out and then you change ‘d’ to ‘c’ so that you follow through and there’s a lot of other stuff in there.  What I mean is that one under 4, this is page 7 for people who are looking, so at the bottom of page 7 you’ve taken out that whole section so this is what I mean.  In terms of tailoring it you’re thinking we don’t really need to deal with ‘air resources’ so you’re taking that out.  That’s what you’re saying, right?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that is what’s presented by our consultants and I don’t believe that that subsection ‘c’ on air resources is a mandate within roman numeral 4 for scoping. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is what I’m saying.  I would like some input, when you’ve had a chance, because we’re just getting us to look at it, had a chance to look at it then you can give us some advice…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I thought at our work session Chris you said you didn’t have a problem with the deletion of the air resources?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, we have to confer it to legal council and on this particular job project there is no impact, if the Planning Board agrees. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess the point is there’s no prescribed language in a scoping document, this has evolved in the Town of Cortlandt over time which you’ve developed, you and your predecessors and to David’s point I guess it gets tailored to some extent to the applicant and that’s really the process that we’re doing now. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there is a roman numeral 4 which sets up the section, a concise description, the environmental setting and evaluation, that is the language and then there are big topics and then they get tailored.  We need some guidance on how tailored they can be. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s what I want Mr. Lodes to deal with so you guys can obviously be in touch with each other but I do think that for the benefit of the Board there needs to be some sense that we are operating with advice of council and we’re not just willy nelly doing this and not paying careful attention to what we’re doing.  Is there anybody else on the Board or in the audience who has anything else to say tonight?  We will be adjourning the hearing obviously. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I would just say as we develop this DEIS it’s really not something that is done in collaboration with an applicant.  We’ve never done it this way.  It’s always been our staff and the Board figuring out what kind of scope that we wanted to have and felt that was necessary.  I don’t think we should – it’s a slippery slope to go down trying to get the applicant to agree to what the version of the scope that they like the best is.  We have to make the scope best for what we think we need to learn and that’s why we’re going through this whole process.  It’s a waste of time to just make up something that’s not going to have the guts that we need to examine to really determine whether this development’s going to be a good one for our community or not.  I just wanted to put that out there that we should be doing what we feel is the right scope. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated very brief because I feel it’s necessary.  Nobody on the applicant’s side has said, Ms. Todd, that we have to agree to the scope.  I’d be the first one to tell you and I know Mr. Lodes will be really the first one to advise you that the scope is your document.  However, I have to respectfully Susan beg to differ because I’ve been doing scoping documents with this Board for 21 years.  I have participated in every single project that I’ve worked on that’s had a pos. dec.  I’ve participated in the scope and the process in making recommendations.  We’ve done it on every single project.  Everybody who’s been on that Board, including you on the projects that my clients have received a pos. dec. there’s absolutely, unequivocally and please turn to Karl, nothing inappropriate about the applicant making suggestions on a scoping document that’s then made available for public review.  I’m not sure if I’m reading too much into your comment but we are unquestionably permitted as every member of the public to participate in the scoping process and we’ve always done it.  We’ve always done drafts.  In fact, the reason your document, what we in the public call the Ken Vershoor scope, which evolved over 25 years grew to 15-17 pages is because he continued borrowing from all of the different scopes that had been prepared by the applicants over the years.  So, we’ve all be involved in this. 
Ms. Susan Todd stated I’d say though, for my term on the Board, this has been the most suggestions that I’ve seen from an applicant.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded but let’s remember why, and that’s actually the thing that you should discuss and I hope you would and Ms. Todd’s comments maybe the jumping off point.  My clients started this project before you even retained our firm trying to do work in advance preemptively and proactively.  He hired consultants, he started doing a biodiversity study.  He did it with the hope that he’d be preparing a long EAF with a supplemental part III and do all the studies that Ed and Chris make sure people do on every project.  To some extent he did it to his own detriment because he got so far out in front and did all of that over a period of time.  When we hear comments of the Village of Croton not commenting, I looked at the agenda, this things been pending since 2007.  It’s got an ’07 application date on it.  The reason I say that is because three meetings ago when we came before you and said “all right, make some decisions here.  Are we going with a neg. dec. and along the EAF or are we going with a pos. dec.?”  Mr. Kline, then on the Board, said and go check the minutes on this “I could support a pos. dec. if it’s a focused EIS.”  So, the reason, Susan you’re struggling with what’s going on here, we’re really trying to work with you guys and staff and the public so we get a focused EIS.  It’s a 6 lot subdivision.  It’s not the 63 lot Cortlandt Ridge EIS.  It’s not like other projects that you’ve worked on that are in excess of 15 or 20 lots.  It’s a 6 lot subdivision.  You’ve decided to pos. dec. it.  If you remember three or four meetings ago my client came in and said “I’m volunteering to take the pos. dec. but what we’re trying to do is achieve a balance with a focused scope.”  That’s all that’s happening.  We’re trying to take the 17 page Vershoor scope and tailor it for a 6 lot subdivision.  That’s why your staff is saying “take out air resources.  It’s a waste of trees to kill the trees to put in the air resources section for us to tell you that we’re not damaging the air.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we had air resources in there and you took it out and we did not necessarily object to taking it out but we had it in there and that’s up to the Board to decide whether you want to keep it in there or not. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we adjourn this to the November meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you at the November meeting.


*



*
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OLD BUSINESS 

PB 13-05    a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of a 52.78 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision and Site Development for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated July 8, 2009 and on drawings entitled “Preliminary Landscape Plan” and “Stone Wall Plan” both prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. and dated July 21, 2009.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated Madame Chair we were here during the work session and we heard the various comments that were made by the Board members.  I will just say for the record that on August 3rd at the meeting we were advised by the Board that the Board was interested in considering between 16 and 18 lots.  At that time we had proposed 20 new building lots plus an existing lot.  At the September 16th special session which we were gratified, the Board conducted, and we went there with an open mind and, in fact, as the Board knows that we had actually done some adjustments and were able to accomplish a plan with 18 lots or various alternatives that would result in 18 lots.  We heard what the Board said tonight and, as you know, we had previously consented to an extension of the time for the Board to act until tomorrow.  We would consent to a further extension to the Board’s meeting in November and we would ask that the Board consider all of the discussion that has been had between the applicant and the Board and amongst the Board members and we would await your decision at the next meeting.  We’d ask that you take the necessary steps to do your SEQRA finding statement and we await your determination. 
Mr. John Klarl asked so you’d agree the next meeting is November 3rd, so you’d agree to extend the time to November 4th?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded correct John.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any comments from the members of the Board?  We appreciate your decision to give us additional time on this.  I’m just curious as to since you were at this session what your reaction is to the proposals that we thrashed out there at that work session?

Mr. John Klarl stated probably if you ask him first if he understood it.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated it was a juggling act.  I think that I just stated our position. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I’m inferring what you’re saying but I think I would feel better if you could say pretty much so that we’re all clear on it because – you say you’re giving us an opportunity to have an extension, I’m inferring that you are willing to abide by what we have decided. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated you are inferring that we are willing to allow this Board – I don’t think that was said correctly, we are willing to await this Board’s determination on the project.  You know what the application is.  You know what the various alternatives that we have proposed.  We’ve heard your discussion.  You know our position and we await your decision. 

Mr. John Klarl stated right now the applicant’s request is for 19 new plus an existing so the Board understands.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well because it did change.  We talked about one thing on the 16th and then things changed.  I guess we all ought to be clear on exactly what it is you are requesting. 

Mr. Peter Lynch responded 19.

Mr. John Klarl stated 19 new plus an existing.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded correct. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s 19 plus existing so we’re talking 20.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated it was 20 plus the existing, wasn’t it on the last site plan?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we had it at the workshop the plan that was in place at that point, up to that point, was 20 new lots plus an existing and we had proposed a plan for consideration as an alternative that would have resulted in a net number of lots of 18.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked 18 new?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded correct, 18 new plus the existing.  That would be the 19.  That was the last alternative that we had presented to the Board at the workshop and of course that’s the alternative that we would ask, and we’d still ask, not withstanding the discussion at the workshop tonight that you give consideration to and that’s our position. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked in total, including the existing house we’re talking 19 lots?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded correct. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is that alternative ‘A’?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think so. 

Mr. John Bernard responded yes. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we need to plot this out.  Is everybody clear exactly on what we want to go and what we want to stay and how this looks when we look at his drawing?

Mr. Robert Foley responded what the majority of the Board wants. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m clear. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated when I say “we” I mean the Board.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t think we have unanimity.  I think we’re all clear on what we want but I don’t think we have unanimity. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we probably don’t have unanimity on every issue but what I’m saying is we sort of at the work session throughout our suggestions on what we all could agree on and some of us were in the minority on other things.  When we were in the minority, the majority rules, that’s just the way things go. 

Mr. John Klarl stated at the work session you try to find all the common ground lots. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we did all agree to certain things.  Let me put it another way, I have to phrase that differently; we looked at specific lots that we thought should remain or go then we, in some cases, all of us agreed on certain things and then in others a majority of us agreed on other actions.  In that sense, the majority rules so I’m thinking to that extent we have some decision on what we want to do. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it doesn’t necessarily mean that collectively any individual agrees collectively with the individual pieces. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated right. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I agree that you had certain agreements on certain pieces but still somebody can vote thumbs up or thumbs down on whatever the piece the majority wanted in the individual pieces, that the all may not be satisfying to them. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, you’re right but I’m saying we can sit here and vote on these just as we discussed them in individual pieces but in the end 4 beats 2 and so the majority will rule in that instance so if you would like us to break this out.

Mr. John Klarl stated just so the applicant knows we think that the next meeting in November we’re going to have a 7th Board member.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated which may or may not add to anything.  The person who comes to the Board in a sense is new to this, not completely new, brand new but he hasn’t had the level of involvement.  He hasn’t had all of the materials and we’re at a stage now to bring somebody in now at the – I think is a little unfair quite frankly. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think it’s up to the individual to decide if he’s comfortable voting or not. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we have reached a point where we’ve come to a decision on what we want.  I don’t know why we need to wait for another member to come to add to this.  We either are for what we said we were for or we’re not.  I don’t know why we’re waiting. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m just saying at the next meeting that person will potentially be a voting member as well.  If we’re not voting on anything tonight, we have no Resolution in front of us.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, but if the person is not – this is exactly why I’m saying this because that person will come, we’ve already looked at all this and said “I want this.  I want this.  I want this.”  That person is not prepared necessarily to go there for the next meeting so then we’d end up putting this off again possibly to another meeting.  I would like to see us go forward with this.  This is my personal opinion, go forward with it and have something ready to vote on for next time, to actually vote on for next time. I’d like to have your input on that whether you want to go there or you want to just wait.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded I think the Steve Resolution or the Steve alternative should become the Resolution and let us comment on it.  At starting point let’s take a look at that which is, I’ll summarize that which is: to maintain lot 18 on Lexington, combine 19 and 20 into one lot with the understanding that one of these is an existing, I forgot which one it was, 20 is existing.
Mr. Peter Lynch stated no 21 is existing. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so 19 and 20 we would combine into one lot, combine lots 5, 6, and 7 into two lots, those three lots go to two. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just color commentary here, the original proposal was there were two lots there that they’d made into three and my recommendation was let’s go back to the original proposal when it was just two lots there where they tried to make it into three. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated then eliminate lots 13 and 14.  That brings us to a total of 16 lots plus the existing house. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated except that when we were sitting at the table we also voted off 1, there were 4 people who didn’t want 1 and 1 does not exist in your scenario.  Again, I’d like us to go back, even though we may not agree entirely on every single one of these pieces, we all did come to some agreement in terms of which ones we were looking at and we made decisions based on that.  Everybody wanted 13 and 14 off.  The majority wanted 1 off.  The majority wanted 5, 6, 7 to move from three to two.  The majority were for keeping 18.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked that was at the work session, could we do this now in the public in the regular meeting now to make sure that’s still how everybody feels?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded that’s why I’m reading this off. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re saying that they did so now do we all agree – can we vote again on whether lot 1 goes or stays to see the 4 to 2 vote and to get a sense of the Board, not a vote?
Ms. Susan Todd asked is this the process that we really should be taking?  Usually when we vote on a Resolution it’s what the applicant has proposed.  It’s not a proposal that we created. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s not true, go back to Hilltop.  We prepared a Resolution for – what was it 5 houses, they wanted 6 houses or was it 4 versus 5?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s correct. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and we prepared a Resolution for a different number of homes than from what they proposed.

Mr. John Klarl stated and also says we don’t always – we don’t do it that often but we can do conditional approval too where you say I approve ‘x’ lots as a condition of the subdivision approval. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I guess we just haven’t done it very often. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no we haven’t.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated let me follow that for a minute because if we put into a Resolution what we have seemed to agree upon what do we do?  We vote for that or do we vote against the applicants?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think we would almost be moving towards a conditional approval.  If he wants 19 and we only wanted 16 we’re saying we approve 16 and he has to accept that or not. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the Resolution would be for 16? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. John Klarl stated with the conditional approval. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated more or less or the ones that are in the minority on the higher amount would just vote ‘no’ then when it comes to a Resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you would just vote the whole Resolution down, is that what you’re saying?
Mr. Steven Kessler stated ultimately it’s going to come down to whether you’re comfortable with the whole package that’s being presented in the Resolution. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re right in that sense, yes, but I – 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if I want lot 1, my issue is: do I go to the mat because lot 1 is taken out because 4 people on the Board want lot 1 taken out.  That’s something that I’ve got to decide between now and when the time to vote on the Resolution. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re right and that’s one reason why I thought of sketching it out maybe the two scenarios with the ones we agreed, sort of worked on around the table and then any other one that, maybe yours that’s here, take a real good look at them with certain lots totally out of the picture, you get a better sense of what you’re looking at…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked aren’t they Steve and Bob?  Isn’t that what was discussed the Steve and Bob?

Mr. Robert Foley responded those were just two Board members with input. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked it wasn’t your alternative exactly the same as Steve’s with the exception of…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked he has what lot 1 in. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated with the exception of lot 1 is exactly right, but he’s changed it. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated well, in a clarification I was agreeing to lot 18 which was a questionable one.  It was moved over out of the slope, so to speak, and I wondered if there was room for the septic as I mentioned at the work session.  Because, I still feel that the loop on Mill Court, there’s still too many lots there and when Susan surmised that perhaps of the 4, 5, 6, numbers I believe those were the three numbers on the north westerly portion. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 5, 6, 7 I believe it is. 

Mr. Robert Foley continued 5, 6, 7 that all of them should go rather than just condensing that from three to two.  I even suggested three to one.  I could be more favorable to not having any of those there instead of 13…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if I had my druthers we’d be down to about 11.  What I’m saying is we each can’t have it our way.  We’ve got to comprise here. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know we had a count the letter on this that Loretta that you’ve brought up in the past but I think the CAC memo of September 13th – they are the standing committee on the environment in the Town and in the letter if I could just paraphrase and point one, they’re talking about the biodiversity, you’ve seen the letter, the loss of habitat, the corridor.  They’re basically saying that by reducing the number of homes off Mill Court loop or works at effect from the current 16 to 10 “lots further minimizing impact of wildlife and patterns of movements.”  Then, they also get into a few lines on the trees.  We just had a long time we spent on Mountain View were for 8 trees and a changed road to save those trees.  They’re saying here “a further reduction of the number of houses is clearly the best way to save trees, etc.”  Then they get into the storm water thing which I know is somewhat resolved to our consultants.  Then, the more important one to me is on the traffic which I’ve been bringing up all along.  They’ve cited that they still feel there’s a number of major problems that have not been addressed on the traffic: the inadequacy of the count, etc, and the impact down to Red Mill Road, “poses unacceptable safety issues.  The goal should be to improve the safety of Red Mill Road rather than restore it to its unsafe condition.”  Then, of course there would have to be off site improvements.  I won’t even get into the SEQRA full disclosure thing.  I just wanted to point that out.  It came in in September and there were previous comments to this effect from the CAC and from me and the public.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated those issues could be a condition of approval.

Mr. Robert Foley stated well, that would be part of it.  Do you feel that the County concerned about, I think it’s under storm water, is that been resolved totally?  That’s bullet 3 on the CAC’s letter.  I just wanted to point that out.  I don’t know if this was read or cited completely at the previous meeting.  The last meeting I wasn’t here and I’m not sure if Kirquel was on the agenda then.  I still have my druthers about the number of units coming down Mill Court.  My two reasons, as I’ve told the Board earlier, not only the traffic impact but the potential storm water and drainage down to adjoining properties and also adjoining streets.  I was willing to go along with the 18 up on the top, number 18 on the top and the three is down to two across from George Washington fine.  One is existing, so I still have a problem with even 13 coming off Mill Court.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated what we’re saying is that we’re really not ready to do very much. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think staff’s got to prepare a Resolution one way or the other.  A findings statement, I’m sorry. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s kind of difficult at this point to decide what direction to give you.  We can’t be for all or nothing at the same time.  I don’t understand where we’re going with this.  Everybody has a sense of what we did discuss and most people are getting most of what they want.  I don’t know that we can get all that we want.  Where do we go?  What are we going to do?  We need to vote on it obviously and if you don’t feel that you’re ready to vote or you’d have to vote down the Resolution because one or two of the things you wanted are not in there then we still have some work to do.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but at least if you have a Resolution, just like we’ve done with every Resolution, you can add and subtract from that Resolution when you have it in front of you. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we need to prepare a finding statement though but a finding statement based on what? 16 lots, 17 lots, we need direction. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is the reason I’m starting with lots – there are other things that clearly that are problematic for this development but one of the major issues is, and I think it goes without saying, we have to decide on what lots we will keep and which we will have to let go and then we can also deal with these other things that need to be addressed. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked can you prepare a finding statement with less than 16 total lots?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded whatever you direct us to do.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but the finding statement goes along with the Resolution and the Resolution is either an approving Resolution, a denying Resolution, a 0, a 16.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think we’re all at the point of an approving Resolution.  I think what we’re arguing over or discussing is the number of actual new homes that are to be built and exactly where they are going to be.  As Loretta said, we’ve got some consensus here as to certain lots being eliminated, I believe, but there are still some Board members that want to go a little further than that.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked are there any majority, that’s the question?  We have to either poll everybody again, come up with a consensus of who’s in the majority and then go with that and then vote on it next meeting, one way or the other. 

Mr. John Klarl stated right now, from what the applicant looked at, looks like the applicant’s proposed 18 lots and one existing and what you described before Tom was 16 lots and one existing.  So, it looks like there’s a total of 19 versus a total of 17.

Mr. Robert Foley stated mine was less.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated at a maximum, at an upper limit.  The upper limit that we’re discussing is the 16 plus one existing and there are people that want to see further reductions from that point of different types. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I guess we could start with a number if we all know... 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s not a vote, it’s a recommendation. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated recommend staff prepare findings statement then a Resolution. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked they need a lot count total for the findings and the Resolution correct?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you want to see how many homes?  11 homes or 10 homes, or 9 homes?

Mr. Robert Foley responded I said that – it’s hard.  At one point I had a total of 15 lots plus the existing lot off of Lexington and Steve had 16.  Since then, when others have weighed in I feel that perhaps that they’d be one or two less off of Mill Court which would make it one or two less than the 15 total, that includes Lexington houses.  There could be, instead of 13 off Mill, it could be as low as 11 and that would be that 5, 6, 7 configuration. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I initially started with, in my mind a long time ago, with 11 in terms of what I thought I could do but the reality of situation…

Mr. Robert Foley stated off Mill.  11 total, total?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded if you had your druthers you’d like to see this but we have to deal with the reality here.  So, you want 13 or 14, based on your numbers there?

Mr. Robert Foley responded 11 or 12 off Mill plus the three, I believe it’s three up top.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 14 plus the existing. 

Mr. Robert Foley continued 14 minimum. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the 14, does that include the existing?

Mr. Robert Foley stated we have three on Lexington: number 18 and then the combined 19, 20 whatever, the three together there and then instead of 13…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked no, no with the three together are you saying you want two or you want three, I’m not sure what you’re saying?

Mr. Robert Foley asked on Lexington?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley responded I believe we all seem to be in agreement that it was what – where the existing home is that became what, a total of two instead of three counting the existing, 19, 20, 21?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you want the 18, that’s one.  You want two along Lexington where there were three, you want two, that’s three homes.  What about the others?  Then you want?

Mr. Robert Foley responded Mill Court eliminating lots 1, 13, 14 I believe. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s another three homes. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated that brings it to 13 off Mill.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m just counting the number of homes so far.  You’ve got the 6 homes…
Mr. Robert Foley stated 5, 6, 7 scenario on the north.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s 9 homes. 

Mr. Robert Foley continued westerly portion would be the 5, 6, 7 reduced down, instead of the two lots, to possibly one or all, or 0 for those three. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked why don’t you count that up for me because I’m losing you?

Mr. Robert Foley stated it would be 11 off Mill maximum and the three on Lexington total 14.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 14. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked plus the existing?

Mr. John Bernard asked is that where you’re at Bob, plus the existing?

Mr. Robert Foley responded three on Lexington is 18, then the existing makes it four on Lexington right?  No, the 19, 20 is reduced to one and then you have the 21 as the existing so it’s three on Lexington. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated 14 is enough. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated total…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated including the existing.  So, as we’ve been calling it, it’s 13 plus one. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes.  Bob’s is 13 plus one. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated it’s pretty simple.  If you take Bob’s scenario, instead of combining lots 5, 6, and 7 into two lots, I want to eliminate lots 5 and 6 because of continued drainage concerns which makes me 14 lots plus the existing home on Lexington. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 14 plus one is equal to 15.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so she wants to get rid of 1, 5, and 6?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. John Bernard stated personally, I’m okay with the original last proposal as listed as Bob’s on this sheet.  That shows a total of 15 lots plus the existing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 15 plus one is 16.  So, we’re all different numbers at this point in terms of the total.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ve had a proposal for 14, 15, 16, and 17.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked where’s the 17?

Mr. John Klarl responded 17 was the Steve alternative. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Susan was 14 plus one, Bob was 13 plus one, John is 15 plus one, and I’m 16 plus one. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and I’m 16 plus one. 

Mr. John Klarl asked same as the Steve alternative? 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m for eliminating five of the houses so that brings me, if you’re taking his 19 total…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think you’re at Bob’s.

Mr. John Bernard stated 15 plus one. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m sorry you’re at John.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated John, 15 plus one.  Where are we now? 

Mr. John Klarl stated the tally so far is that the applicant has talked 19 which is 18 plus one then Bob Foley is 13 plus one which is 14, Susan is 14 plus one which is 15, John Bernard and Loretta Taylor are 15 plus one for 16, and the Steve alternative which is backed by the team of Steve and Tom is 16 plus one for a total of 17.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated you have 4 members at at least 15 plus one correct?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded correct.  That might be where you start.  The new member of the Planning Board just informed me that he will be voting next month.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked since we’re going to vote next month can we – this is what I’m saying, I don’t know because in the end we’re still going to have to identify the specific lots even where there’s some level of agreement there might be a slight difference.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated the only dispute is 1. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated John, I don’t know if you want to stop me, but we could do two approving Resolutions taking into account these two alternatives and see if one of them gets 4 votes.  They’re not much different, 15 plus one or 16 plus one. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and the difference is lot 1.  That’s the only difference between them.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and the reason I chose that is because it just enhances or increases that area you’ll have a 13 and 14 will be removed and we’ll get the detention basin down there that will be adjoined to or contiguous with an open space and the wetlands.  So, you get this one huge area that’s really, hopefully very beautiful and hopefully be something that the residents in the area would like to have anyway.  I just think that removing those three houses in that area would just give us, for me, the best possibility of preserving a lot of space and not complicating the mix so much.  That’s me.  You’re going to do what Chris?  How are you going to manage this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we would be preparing an approving Resolution and a finding statement for the 16 plus one and 15 plus one.  We’d have to figure out exactly how we’d do that but – and I think John I’m doing that because there are 4 members somewhere around there, the other two alternatives are out there.  I would do an approving Resolution with those numbers. 

Mr. John Klarl stated like the Olympics, you’re throwing out the low card.

Ms. Loretta Taylor you will be doing this with some sense of specific lot that you’re talking about. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, as Steve says the only difference is lot 1. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there you have it.  You’re going to do it that way and I guess the rest of us will have to take this drawing and imagine each of the scenarios in that regard. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked 5, 6, 7 wasn’t it the difference?  Wasn’t there a disagreement?

Mr. John Bernard responded no. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded my understanding is both wanted to combine three into two and I think Susan wanted to combine three into one?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated right, that’s the difference.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that or one.  I end up with 14 total overall and Loretta apparently ended up with 14 total overall?

Mr. John Bernard responded 15.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded 15.

Mr. Robert Foley asked 14 plus one or 15 plus one?

Mr. John Bernard responded 15.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 15 plus one.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s 16. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you do your best Chris, as you always do and we’ll have to deal with that next go around and we’ll be ready to vote next time and the applicant then will have to make a decision.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’re going to make a motion to staff prepare a Resolution of planning statement?

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we have staff prepare a findings statement and two approving Resolutions for our next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 8-10    b.
Application of Baker Capital, LP for amended site Development Plan Approval for the conversion of interior space in an existing warehouse building to office space, the construction of 9 additional parking spaces and for a new monument sign located at 510-534 Furnace Dock Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Ralph Peragine, P.E. latest revision dated September 2010 (see prior PB 27-01).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are going to bring this back at a future date.  I think I announced this earlier at the beginning of the session that we would be bringing this back at a future date per the applicant’s request.  We will not be dealing with this tonight.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I make a motion to adjourn this case to a date to be determined.

Seconded 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is it really adjourning it or is it simply…

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we’re referring it back.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so we’ll refer it back.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 11-10    a.
Referrals from the Town Board for proposed changes to Chapter 245 Signs, and for amending the Comprehensive Plan and for preparing new legislation to permit residential use on the 2nd floor of certain commercial buildings along Route 6 (Cortlandt Boulevard) and for a historic/scenic road preservation ordinance.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we schedule a public hearing for these proposed changes at our November 3rd meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE

PB 8-02    a.
Undated letter (received by the Planning Division on September 21, 2010) from Jeremy Waycott requesting Planning Board approval of a sign for Boost Mobile at the Mavis Tire Building located on Cortlandt Boulevard.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe we’re going to approve this by motion.  Can I get a motion to approve?
So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 37-06    b.
Letter dated September 23, 2010 from David Steinmetz, Esq. requesting the 1st 90-day time extension of Final Plat Approval for the Kings Ferry Commons Subdivision located on Kings Ferry Road.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution #50-10.
Seconded 

With all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 9-06      c.
Letter dated September 24, 2010 from John Sullivan, Esq. requesting the 1st 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Wickel Subdivision located on Lafayette Avenue.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I’ll move that we adopt Resolution 51-10.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adjourn.  So moved.
11:26 p.m.
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 3rd, 2010

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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